
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

 
Time 
 

2.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Pensions 

Venue 
 

West Midlands Pension Fund, i9 Offices, Wolverhampton Interchange, Railway 
Drive, Wolverhampton, WV1 1LD 

Membership 
 
Employer Representatives Member Representatives 
Paul Johnson (Chair) 
Joe McCormick  
Ian Martin  
Mark Smith 
Jacqueline Carman 
Cllr Sandra Samuels OBE 
 
Observer Member  
Steve Smith 
 
 

Julian Allam (Vice-Chair) (Unite) 
Sharon Champion (Unison) 
Stan Ruddock (Unite) 
Adrian Turner (Unison) 
Terry Dingley (GMB) 
Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur 
 

The Quorum requires, at least one member from each category of member and employer  
representatives. If the Chair and Vice Chair are not present a Chair will be nominated by  
majority from those in attendance. 
 
Information for the Public 
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Fabrica Hastings 
Tel/Email Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 01902 552873 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 
Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk 
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
Tel 01902 550320 
 
Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room. 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

Agenda 
 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 
  
1 Apologies for absence  
  
2 Declarations of interests  
  
3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 
  
4 Matters arising  
  
5 Funding Strategy Statement (Pages 11 - 64) 
 [To receive an overview of the approved changes to the Funding Strategy 

Statement (FSS).] 
  

6 Investment Strategy Statement (Pages 65 - 92) 
 [To receive an overview of the approved changes to the Investment Strategy 

Statement.] 
  

7 Corporate Plan (Pages 93 - 114) 
 [To present the Board with the approved Fund Corporate Plan for 2023 – 2028, 

confirming the areas of focus and drivers for change over the next five years, 
together with the goals and ambitions for continuing to develop the Fund and 
deliver a high-quality service to our customers.] 
  

8 External Audit Plan (Pages 115 - 164) 
 [To inform Board members of both the plan for the external audit of the Fund’s 

Annual Report and Accounts for 2022/23 and the approved management 
responses to questions from external auditors as part of their audit planning.] 
  

9 Internal Audit Plan (Pages 165 - 174) 
 [To provide the Board with the approved outline of work programme for internal 

audit during 2023 – 2024.] 
  

10 Compliance and Assurance (Pages 175 - 186) 
 [To provide the Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well 

governed scheme.] 
  

11 Pensions Administration (Pages 187 - 206) 
 [To inform the Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the Pensions 

Administration Service areas during the period 1 October – 31 December 2022.] 
  

12 Customer Engagement (Pages 207 - 232) 
 [To provide the Board with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity 

from 1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022 and to cover future planned customer 
engagement activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.] 
  



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

13 Investment Governance (Pages 233 - 236) 
 [To provide an update on investment related matters, an update on responsible 

investment activities, together with the ongoing development of Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool.] 
  

14 Exclusion of press and public  
 [That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3 
of Schedule 12A to the Act.] 
  

15   Development of Fund Resource (Pages 237 - 242)  
 [To provide an update on staffing developments and 

requirements to support the Fund service delivery.] 
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  Para (3)  

16   Cyber Security (Pages 243 - 262)  
 [To receive an update on Cyber Security and the 

approved 2023/2024 Cyber Security Strategy.] 
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  Para (3)  

17   Areas for Discussion   
 [To provide the Board with an update on regulatory 

issues within the LGPS.] 
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  Para (3)  



This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

 

Pensions Board 
Minutes - 24 January 2023 

 
Attendance 

 
Members of the Pensions Board 
 
Employer Representatives  
Paul Johnson (Chair) – (Virtual) 
Joe McCormick  
Ian Martin  
Mark smith  
Jacqueline Carman – (Virtual) 
 
Member Representatives  
Julian Allum (Vice-Chair) 
Sharon Campion  
Stan Ruddock  
Adrian Turner  
Terry Dingley – (Virtual) 
 
Observer Members  
Steve Smith – (Virtual) 

 
 
Employees  
Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions - West Midlands Pension 

Fund 
Rachel Howe 
 
Amy Regler  
Shiventa Sivanesan  
Simon Taylor  
Karina Thomas  
Hayley Reid 
Laura Parker-Marsden  

Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance - West Midlands 
Pension Fund 
Head of Operations 
Assistant Director, Investment Management and Stewardship  
Assistant Director, Pensions  
Head of People and Corporate Services  
Regulatory Governance Manager – (Virtual) 
Governance Support Officer  

Holly Slater Governance Officer 
 
 

 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 

 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for Absence 

No apologies for absence were received. 
 

2 Declaration of Interests 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

3 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a correct record. 
 

4 Matters Arising 
There were no matters arising. 
 

5 Compliance and Assurance 
Rachel Howe, Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance, presented the report on 
the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme.  
  
The Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance provided an overview of the Pensions 
Board nomination process, noting the seats due for re-nomination.    In line with the 
appointments process the Board agreed to convene an appointments panel, Mark 
Smith and Joe McCormick – employer representatives volunteered to support the 
panel.  
  
The Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance provided an overview of the Fund’s 
quarterly assurance monitoring, noting the Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
and compliance monitoring updates. It was highlighted that, in relation to KPIs, from 
a Governance and Assurance perspective, there are no concerns with overall 
performance and delivery of Fund service areas. 
  
Resolved: 

1.    That an appointments panel is convened to receive nominations for the 2023-
2024 democratic year.  

2.    That the seats for nomination are confirmed.  
3.    That the latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in 

the current environment be noted.  
4.    That the Fund’s KPIs and action taken to support service delivery be noted.  
5.    That the compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter be 

noted.  
6.    That the Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts which have been published on 

the Fund’s website in accordance with the statutory deadline of 1 December 
2022 be noted. 

  
 

6 Delivering our Corporate Plan 
Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report providing 
the Board with an update on the work of the Fund in achieving its deliverables and 
targets as set out in the Corporate Plan 2022-2027.  
  
The Executive Director of Pensions highlighted the number of regulatory changes 
and consultations that the Fund continues to await. It was also noted that the Fund 
had responded to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC) consultation on climate risk and reporting within the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and were awaiting outcomes.  
  
In response to a question with regards to staffing and retention of key Fund officers, 
the Executive Director of Pensions confirmed that although there remains a risk, it 
was not unique to the Fund or the LGPS. The Executive Director of Pensions was 
pleased to report that the Fund had recruited to the vacant Assistant Director of 
Investment Strategy position. It was noted that the Fund continues to seek resolution 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

for the challenging market conditions in relation to recruitment and retention of staff, 
which involved reviewing roles, testing the market in different ways and ongoing 
employee development and training in order to build resilience within the Fund. It 
was agreed that an update on Fund Resources would be bought to the next Local 
Pensions Board meeting.  
  
Resolved: 
  

1.    That the work undertaken by the Fund to work towards the goals and 
ambitions outlined in the Corporate Plan 2022 – 2027 be noted.  

  
 

7 Investment Governance 
Shiventa Sivanesan, Assistant Director – Investment Management and Stewardship, 
presented the report on investment governance.  
  
It was noted that the Pensions Committee had approved both the Responsible 
Investment Framework and the publication of the Fund’s Taskforce for Climate-
related Financial Disclosure (TCFD) Report at their meeting on 14 December 2022 
and that both documents had been published to the Fund’s website. 
  
Resolved: 
  

1.    That the update on investment governance matters including those in relation 
to responsible investment and investment pooling be noted. 

2.    That publication of the Fund’s 2022 TCFD Report be noted. 
3.    That the Fund’s 2022 Responsible Investment Framework be noted. 

  
 

8 Pensions Administration Report from 1 July to 30 September 2022 
Amy Regler, Head of Operations, presented the quarterly Pensions Administration 
Report providing an overview of the operational works undertaken by the Pension 
Administration service. 
  
It was also noted that the KPIs are currently cumulatively achieving the 90% target 
for the year to date. The Head of Operations also drew the Board’s attention to the 
positive response received from the overseas existence checking of deferred 
members, achieving a 60% verification success rate, which was higher than 
anticipated. A review will take place for those members from whom the Fund did not 
receive a response. 
  
In response to a question around how admitted bodies are admitted to the Fund, the 
Head of Operations confirmed that each application is considered on an individual 
basis with appropriate due diligence. Further information with regards to the due 
diligence checks undertaken and employer covenant risk rating was provided by the 
Assistant Director – Pensions.  
  
A further question was asked around the percentage of complaints being upheld and 
whether this was considered as high. The Head of Operations advised that the 
percentage upheld had slightly increased in the quarter linked to an increase in 
workload, complexity and changing regulations. The Head of Operations assured the 
Board that there were no concerns regarding the percentage of complaints that had 
been upheld.  Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

  
Resolved: 
  

1.    That the 17 applications for admission from employers into the Fund as 
detailed in section 9 and Appendix E of this report be noted.  

2.    That the performance and workloads of the key pension administration 
functions be noted. 

3.    That the development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers 
be noted. 

4.    That the outcomes of the Fund’s deferred overseas existence exercise be 
noted.  

  
 

9 Customer Engagement Update 
Simon Taylor, Assistant Director – Pensions, presented the report on customer 
engagement, encompassing member engagement and communications.  
  
The Assistant Director – Pensions highlighted an article that had been included in the 
December 2022 addition of the Local Government Chronicle, containing a case study 
on the Fund, its engagement and approach towards retirement planning.  
  
Resolved: 
  

1. That the engagement activity and informed service development be noted. 
  
 

10 2022 Actuarial Valuation Update 
Simon Taylor, Assistant Director – Pensions, presented the report providing an 
update on the actuarial valuation. The Assistant Director – Pensions highlighted the 
changes in approach from 2019, namely the adoption of a risk-based approach for 
determining contribution outcomes. 
  
It was noted that the Fund would continue to consult on the Funding Strategy 
Statement over February 2023, to refine and enhance its approach from 2019, to 
reflect the diverse makeup of the Fund’s employer base and the change in economic 
backdrop. 
  
A Board member commented that the information the Assistant Director – Pensions 
and his colleagues had provided to the further education (FE) sector was very well 
received, noting that the information was helpful and informative.  
  
A question was raised around what impact the recent Office of National Statistics 
(ONS) announcement on FE reclassification to the public sector would have on risk 
ratings. The Assistant Director – Pensions confirmed that the covenant ratings have 
not moved at this stage. This is largely due to uncertainty of what this change 
translates to in relation to the security of LGPS pension liabilities. 
  
In response to a question raised regarding whether employer contributions have 
reduced following the actuarial valuation, the Assistant Director – Pensions 
confirmed that in general, contributions are broadly stable. 
  
Resolved: 

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

  
1.    That the report and the associated update on progress with the 2022 actuarial 

valuation, including the two Admitted Body Sub Funds (ABSFs) be noted. 
2.    That the headline results of the 2022 actuarial valuation be noted. 
3.    That the consultation undertaken and planned activity over the forthcoming 

quarter be noted. 
  
 

11 Pension Administration System Change Project Update 
Amy Regler, Head of Operations, provided a presentation updating Board Members 
with regards to the Fund’s Pensions Administration System Change Project. The 
presentation provided an overview of the system and its functionality. 
  
In response to a question regarding the procurement of the new system, the Head of 
Operations confirmed that appropriate due diligence had been undertaken 
throughout the procurement process, with assessment based on both price and 
quality. 
  
Resolved: 
  

1. That the progress with the transition of the pension administration system to 
the Fund’s new software supplier which was on schedule to complete Q2 
2023 be noted.  

  
  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

   

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report Title  Funding Strategy Statement  
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Simon Taylor 
Email 
 

Assistant Director (Pensions) 
Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 
Report to be/has been 
considered by 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email 

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

 
 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) and Asset Share Policy which were approved by 
the Pensions Committee in March 2023.  
 

2. The consultation undertaken in relation to the 2022 actuarial valuation and the associated 
Funding Strategy Statement. 

 
3. The delivery of the Fund actuary’s valuation report and rate and adjustments certificate in 

accordance with the statutory deadline of 31 March 2023. 
 

4. The updated Employer Risk Management Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item No: 5

mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 

1.1 To provide the Board with an overview of the 2022 actuarial valuation and finalisation of 
associated key policy documents and reporting, 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The Fund is currently required to carry out an actuarial valuation every three years and 

review and set the funding strategy and employer contribution rates for the following 
three years. As part of the valuation, effective 31 March 2022, the Fund Actuary has 
certified the employer contribution rates due for the three years 2023/24 – 2025/26. The 
Actuary’s report and certificate must be obtained by the Fund by the statutory deadline of 
31 March 2023. 

 
2.2 The Fund Actuary prepares the valuation based on the Fund’s own Funding Strategy 

Statement (FSS), which has been updated since it was last reviewed in 2021, to reflect 
the changing regulations and updated actuarial advice received as part of the 2022 
actuarial valuation. The FSS forms an integral part of the valuation, as it sets out the 
Administering Authorities strategy and policy on funding Scheme benefits. 

 
2.3 The FSS incorporates individual appendices covering funding strategy for the Admitted 

Body Separate Funds (ABSFs). 
 
2.4  The draft FSS was issued to employers for consultation in February, following a series of 

employer presentations during November 2022 to January 2023.  
 

2.5  Consultation on the FSS formally closed on 28 February 2023, with follow-up discussions 
with a handful of employers continuing during March 2023. 

  
3.0 Engagement and Consultation 
 
3.1 The Fund issued preliminary valuation results to employers during the course of 

November and December 2022. A complete suite of supporting documents was issued to 
employers alongside the results, together with an online survey link, to enable queries to 
be submitted to the Fund and where appropriate a meeting could be requested during 
the period of consultation (which ran until 31st January 2023).    

 
3.2 The Fund ran a series of multi-employer briefing sessions during December 2022 and 

January 2023 which were attended by 254 individuals representing approximately 36% of 
Fund employers responsible for 95% of total Fund liabilities. The sessions were delivered 
virtually and face to face and covered the following areas: 

 
➢ An overview of the provisional results of the 2022 valuation and changes since the 

2019 valuation. 
➢ An explanation of the new schedules which have been issued containing funding 

outcomes of the valuation. 
➢ Details of the changes to the actuarial assumptions and funding approach 
➢ Discussion surrounding how inter-valuation experience has impacted the Fund and 

employers. 

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

 
 
3.3 The Fund has subsequently engaged in dialogue with employers to discuss their 

contribution outcomes, employer risk categorisation and funding strategy (including 
actuarial assumptions) as a whole, alongside formal consultation and update to the FSS. 
 

3.4 Feedback from the dialogue and consultation process has focussed on five main areas: 
 

• Employers’ affordability and cashflow management concerns  
• Advance payment options 
• Contribution pooling arrangements 
• Treatment of surplus and associated funding strategy 
• Covenant rating and classification of employers into risk groups 

 
3.5 For many employers, outcomes align to the outcomes at Fund-level, specifically the 

increase in funding level, and increased primary (future service) rate contributions, with a 
decrease in secondary (past service deficit) contributions. The range of funding 
outcomes reflects the diversity and legacy of employers within the Fund. The 
consultation process has benefitted from improved employer understanding and 
awareness of the valuation process and individual outcomes, largely as a result of the 
extensive engagement undertaken as part of prior actuarial valuations. 

 
3.6 In a handful of cases affordability concerns have been raised by employers, primarily as 

a result of budgetary and/or cashflow pressures. In such cases, the Fund has requested 
evidence, to include updated financial information and short-term forecasts, to take into 
account in review of individual employer contribution plans. 

 
3.7 In response to feedback from employers, the Fund (following advice of the Fund Actuary) 

has provided some easement to employers through phasing increases in contributions 
and offering alternative payment profiles with a reduction in contributions for advance 
payment. 

 
3.8 Where initiated by the participating employer, the Fund has also engaged with scheme 

employers (guarantors) who provide a guarantee to another participating employer. This 
engagement has, in some cases, resulted in the guarantor extending comfort to afford 
the individual employer a more relaxed pace of funding, therefore minimising the 
cashflow pressure over the next three years, but with a further review at the next 
actuarial valuation. 

 
3.9 Looking further ahead, and in particular at employers with increasingly mature 

membership profiles (those on a path to exit from the scheme), the Fund has engaged 
with certain employers around funding strategy to mitigate the effects of a significant exit 
debt on cessation. This is an initial step in a wider review of employers on a path to exit, 
which may include a subsequent change of funding and investment strategy. 

 
3.10 Final contribution outcomes have been confirmed with the Fund Actuary and are included 

in the 2022 actuarial valuation report and rates and adjustments certificate. All employers 

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

received a copy of their final results and individual contribution schedules for 2023/24-
2025/26 during March 2023.   

 
4.0 Funding Strategy Statement 
 
4.1 The Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) has been prepared based on prevailing 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance and reviewed 
by the Fund Actuary. 

 
4.2 The key changes to the FSS considered as part of the 2022 actuarial valuation were 

outlined to Governing Body’s at meetings during December 2022 and January 2023.  
 
4.3 The Fund consulted with all participating employers on the proposed amendments to the 

FSS and the associated Asset Share Policy. This consultation period closed on 28 
February and the Fund received responses from 2 employers, specific to these 
documents. Having considered the responses, the Fund did not make any material 
changes to the FSS, however minor wording amendments or points of clarification have 
been made. 

 
4.4 In conjunction with the review of the FSS, the Fund has also updated the Employer Risk 

Management Framework (last reviewed in February 2021), which sets out the Fund’s 
process and key principles surrounding the monitoring and mitigation of employer 
covenant risk. Whilst changes are relatively minimal, this document aligns to current 
funding strategy and with additional information added in the context of climate-related 
covenant risk, with further changes anticipated later in 2023/early 2024, as the Fund 
continues to consider further integration into its Funding Strategy and Risk monitoring.  

 
4.5 Board is asked to note the FSS and Asset Share Policy, as attached in Appendices A 

and B which were approved by the Pensions Committee in March 2023. A link to the 
updated Employer Risk Management Framework is provided in Appendix C. 
 

5.0 Financial Implications 
 
5.1 This report has financial implications for employers and guarantors in that the outcomes 

drive contribution requirements as part of the 2022 actuarial valuation, effective from 1 
April 2023.  

 
6.0 Legal Implications 
 
6.1 The report contains no direct legal implications. 
 
7.0 Other potential implications  
 
7.1 There are no other potential implications.  
 
8.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
8.1 2022 Actuarial Valuation Update – 24 January 2023 Pensions Board Paper 

Page 14

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s230256/2022%20Actuarial%20Valuation%20Update.pdf


This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

 
8.2 2022 Actuarial Valuation Update – 31 October 2022 Pensions Board Paper 
 
8.3 2022 Actuarial Valuation Update – 26 April 2022 Pensions Board Paper  
 
9.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
9.1 Appendix A: Funding Strategy Statement. 
 
9.2 Appendix B: Asset Share Policy. 
 
9.3  Appendix C: Employer Risk Management Framework: Employers - Risk Management 

Framework (wmpfonline.com) 
 
 
 

Page 15

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s223478/2022%20Actuarial%20Valuation%20Update.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s206801/2022%20Actuarial%20Valuation%20Update.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s206801/2022%20Actuarial%20Valuation%20Update.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2023-04/Employers%20-%20Risk%20Management%20Framework%202023.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2023-04/Employers%20-%20Risk%20Management%20Framework%202023.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



FUNDING STRATEGY 

STATEMENT

APRIL 2023



Appendix A

Page 17



 
  


 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



  
 

  



 




Appendix A

Page 18



 



 
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) 

Investment Strategy Statement (ISS)



















 







Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) 






 




















3

3

3 3

3

Appendix A

Page 19






 


 

 


 


 

 

 

 
































Investment Strategy Statement 







Appendix A

Page 20









 









 
















 

 









3
3

3



Appendix A

Page 21





















 


















 










Appendix A

Page 22





 

































   

















Pensions Administration Strategy






 


 
Appendix A

Page 23



 


 


  

























 













Appendix A

Page 24





 






 









 
































Employer Risk Management Framework





 



Appendix A

Page 25











 






























 
















 










Appendix A

Page 26







































 



 


 















 
Appendix A

Page 27
































Termination Policy.


 



















 







 

Appendix A

Page 28
















































 
Appendix A

Page 29





 







 

Funding Strategy Statement

 
Investment
Strategy Statement (ISS)

 


 

 


 


 


  


 


 


 

 




 
 






 

 

 



 



 



 
 




 

 


 

Appendix A

Page 30



 

 



  
Pensions Administration Strategy  



 



 


  


 



 


 


 



 




 


 




 







 



 




 

 







 






 

Appendix A

Page 31





 

Climate
Change Framework and Strategy 






























Asset Share Policy 
Employer Contribution Risk Management Policy




Responsible Investment Policy Framework 
Climate Change Framework and Strategy








Appendix A

Page 32



 

 





























 

 

 











Asset Share Policy

Appendix A

Page 33














































 


  

 



 









Appendix A

Page 34



 



 
























 














 








 









Appendix A

Page 35





 



































 










 













Appendix A

Page 36



 






























     
    
    
      
  
     
   
     
    








    
      
   
   
 
     
 
 
     

Appendix A

Page 37











 




 



 



 


 












 



 


 

 


  
 


  




Appendix A

Page 38



 





Employer Risk Management Framework













  

  
 
 

  
 

  
 



 

 

 
 




 


 
 
 



Appendix A

Page 39









     


  
 


   
  


     
 


 
 
   

 

    
  
 










 
 
 
 

 




































Appendix A

Page 40



 






























 




























Appendix A

Page 41












 









 



 





 

 


 



















Discount rate for buy-in liabilities is based on the relevant duration point of the Bank of England nominal
gilt yield curve: 1.6% p.a. (based on duration of 9.5 years).

Appendix A

Page 42



 

 

 









































 



 



 




Appendix A

Page 43



28






 Funding Strategy 
     Statement



 



 



 




 

 


 

















Appendix A

Page 44



 29

 

 



 









 



 



 




Appendix A

Page 45













 





 
















































Appendix A

Page 46



 



























































Appendix A

Page 47












 


 


 


























 





 













Appendix A

Page 48



 









 





















































Appendix A

Page 49



































Funding Strategy Statement







 


 



 








      Version      Responsible Officer      Change                       Date                          Next Review

 

                                                                                                                                          

Appendix A

Page 50








Appendix A

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank









Appendix B

Page 53







 












































 


 













 

Appendix B

Page 54



 











  







 




 


 











 

 

 

 

 


 
 

 


Appendix B

Page 55

















 


 



 



 




























Appendix B

Page 56



 


























































Appendix B

Page 57
























 
















 



 
















Appendix B

Page 58



 






































Appendix B

Page 59





 

 
 
 






 
 





 
 

 


















 
 













Appendix B

Page 60



 

 

 
 


 



 

 

 

 


 

 
 
 
 
 




 
 














 
 
 












Appendix B

Page 61





 

 
 





























    

    

 

Appendix B

Page 62








Appendix B

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

 
Recommendation for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The revised and updated Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) that was approved by the 
Pensions Committee at their meeting in March 2023. 
 

 
 

 
 
  

  

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report title Investment Strategy Statement  
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Shiventa Sivanesan  
 
Email 

Assistant Director, Investment Management 
and Stewardship  
shiventa.sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email 
 
 

Executive Director of Pensions 
rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item No: 6

mailto:shiventa.sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 To present for Board the reviewed and approved ISS which has been updated to reflect the 

Fund’s review of its investment strategy, incorporating updated investment beliefs, 
governance and risk management arrangements and the Strategic Investment Allocation 
Benchmark (SIAB). 
 

2.0       Background  
 

2.1  The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2016, in force from 1 November 2016, require Administering Authorities to 
publish their first Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) from 1 April 2017 and keep under 
review. 

 
2.2 To comply with the regulations and guidance, the ISS must include: 
 

• A requirement to invest money in a wide variety of investments 
• The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of 

investments 
• The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be measured 

and managed 
• The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective 

investment vehicles and shared services 
• The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate governance 

considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and 
realisation of investments 

• The authority’s policy on the exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to 
investments 

 
2.3 The ISS was last reviewed in-depth in conjunction with the 2019/20 triennial review and has 

been reviewed and updated in 2021 and 2022 to reflect annual review and developing 
implementation and supporting policy.  

 
2.4 The 2023 statement reflects an in-depth review of the investment strategy undertaken by 

the Fund’s investment and risk consultants, in conjunction with the Fund’s officers. The 
updated ISS and SIAB targets have been reviewed by the Fund’s Investment Advisory 
Panel and shared with key stakeholders (employers and governing bodies). Revisions 
reflect review of the Fund’s long-term investment objectives, in context of the outcomes of 
the triennial Funding Strategy and Employer Covenant review, and as part of the Fund’s 
Integrated Risk Management Framework. 

 
3.0   Changes Incorporated in the Revised Investment Strategy Statement  

 
3.1  Following the 2022 triennial actuarial valuation and review of the funding strategy, the Fund 

has been working with its external investment and risk advisers to review the investment 
strategy and to update the strategic asset allocation in light of the improved funding position 
and changing future contribution outlook. The investment beliefs outlined within the ISS and 
risk tolerance of the Fund have been considered and are reflected within the 
recommendations stemming from the review. 

 
 Page 66



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

3.2 The ISS has been updated to reflect changes in strategy for both the Main Fund and the 
Admitted Body Separate Funds (ABSFs). Governing Body members have received through 
recent training, further detail of the review, risk considerations and rationale for changes to 
the SIAB. 

 
3.3 The investment strategy has been assessed and considered in context of the economic 

outlook, Fund commitment to Climate Change and ambition to further integrate wider 
environmental, social and governance factors into investment decision making. The review 
reflects a forward-looking approach to managing both risk and opportunity through the 
investment strategy. 
 

3.4 When considering the investment strategy, the Fund looks to set a medium-term strategy to 
cover the next one to two actuarial valuation cycles (3-6 years) reflecting on the longer-term 
funding requirements and the development of the future benefit cashflow and evolving 
liability profile. It is recognised that conditions may well change over that time period and as 
a consequence the Fund will keep its ISS under review with the Pensions Committee 
reviewing the ISS on an annual basis.  
 

3.5 Key strategic asset allocation changes contained within the ISS for the Main fund are to 
further reduce the target allocation to growth assets and continuing to increase the strategic 
allocation to income producing assets and stabilising (lower risk) assets, reflecting the 
improved funding position from the actuarial valuation and the desire to reduce overall 
levels of investment risk whilst maintaining a return target focused on delivering the longer-
term investment returns to meet the Fund’s funding strategy. The risk reduction envisaged 
through the revised allocation benchmark will aid in increasing funding and contribution 
stability over time.   
 

 
 

3.6 Key changes for the ABSFs reflect the closed and maturing nature of the liabilities the 
assets are held to support. Improving funding levels has enabled further investment risk 
reduction and increased collateral backed liability matching assets. 
 

3.7 Proposals have been developed in consideration of the liquidity requirements of the Fund, 
resilience to changing levels of inflation and the potential for market shocks. 
 

54%

10% 12%
15%

9%

32%

6%

19%
25%

18%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Liquid growth Illiquid growth Liquid income Illiquid income Stabilising
Current allocation Proposed new SIAB

Proposed Changes to SIAB

Page 67



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

3.8 As part of the ISS review, the Fund has undertaken a consultation process with key 
stakeholders which have included group consultation and individual meetings on the 
valuation outcomes and high-level investment strategy review. 
 

3.9 The SIAB and the wider ISS will continue to be reviewed annually, as implementation plans 
develop, to ensure it remains “on track” in context of developing economic and market 
conditions, and emerging guidance applicable to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) investment strategy, governance and implementation. The next full investment 
strategy review will be carried out in conjunction with the 2025 actuarial valuation, for 
approval by 31 March 2026. 

 
4.0  Financial Implications 
 
4.1 This report contains no direct financial implications.  

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 Regulation 8 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 

Funds) Regulations 2016 enables the Secretary of State to issue a Direction if he is 
satisfied that an administering authority is failing to act in accordance with the guidance 
issued by the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC). 
 
The Secretary of State’s power of intervention does not interfere with the duty of elected 
members under general public law principles to make investment decisions in the best long-
term interest of scheme beneficiaries and taxpayers. 
 
The power of Direction can be used in all or any of the following ways: 

 
• To require an administering authority to make changes to its investment 

strategy in a given timescale 
• To require an administering authority to invest assets as specified in the 

Direction 
• To transfer the investment functions of an administering authority to the 

Secretary of State or a person nominated by the Secretary of State 
• To require an administering authority to comply with any instructions from 

either the Secretary of State or the appointed person in circumstances when 
the investment function has been transferred 

 
6.0 Equalities Implications 
 
6.1 This report contains no equal opportunities implications.  
 
7.0  Other Implications 
 
7.1 This report contains no other implications.  
 
8.0  Schedule of Background Papers   
 
8.1 Department of Communities and Local Government guidance on preparing and maintaining 

an investment strategy statement (September 2016) Page 68



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-pension-scheme-guidance-
on-preparing-and-maintaining-an-investment-strategy-statement 

 
9.0 Schedules of Appendices 
 
9.1 Appendix A – Investment Strategy Statement 2023 
 

Page 69

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-pension-scheme-guidance-on-preparing-and-maintaining-an-investment-strategy-statement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-pension-scheme-guidance-on-preparing-and-maintaining-an-investment-strategy-statement


This page is intentionally left blank











Appendix A

Page 71



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
  
   
  
    


    


    


    







Appendix A

Page 72




















 




 

    



 

























Appendix A

Page 73

















































 




Appendix A

Page 74



 






















 


 

 



 


 





 

 

 

 

 


 


Appendix A

Page 75











































  


  




  







Appendix A

Page 76



 

  





  

















 


 

 

 






 






 



 



 




 



 



 


 

 




 


 


 


 


 


Appendix A

Page 77










 

 







 



 




 


 



 



 



 


 

 




 


 




 



 







 





 





 


 



 



 



 

Appendix A

Page 78



 





























































Appendix A

Page 79



























































Appendix A

Page 80



 

























































Appendix A

Page 81























































Appendix A

Page 82



 












































 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A

Page 83













  



  

  
 



  
 



  
 




  


  
 









Appendix A

Page 84



 






  
  

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

  

 
 

 

 







Appendix A

Page 85





























































Appendix A

Page 86



 
























































Appendix A

Page 87






































Appendix A

Page 88



 















  
  

  

 

  

 

  

 
 

  

 

 

  

  
  

Appendix A

Page 89










  
  

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

  
  






Appendix A

Page 90








Appendix A

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
 

04. App B. KPIs.pdf

 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note:  
 

1. The Fund’s Corporate Plan for 2023-2028. 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023  

  
Report title Corporate Plan   
  

Originating service Pension Services  

Accountable employee Rachel Howe 
Email 

Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance 
Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email  

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 93

Agenda Item No: 7

mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Board with the Fund’s Corporate Plan for 

2023 – 2028 confirming the areas of focus and drivers for change over the next five 
years, together with the goals and ambitions for continuing to develop the Fund and 
deliver a high-quality service to our customers. 

 
2.0 Corporate Plan 2023 – 2028 
 
2.1 Our Corporate Plan 2022 – 2027 outlined our goals and ambitions across seven key 

themes which would enhance service delivery to members and employers, be responsive 
to regulatory change and take opportunities to actively participate in the development of 
the Fund to the benefit of both our people and our customers.   

  
2.2 Over the last 12 months, the Fund has made progress across all seven themes, noting a 

core focus during the year of: 
  

- Delivering in line with statutory requirements, the triennial funding and investment 
strategy reviews 

- Preparing for implementation of the McCloud remedy and Pension Dashboards 
including through review and response to consultations 

- Development of the new Pensions Administration System 
- Ongoing development of information and cyber security management 
- People development recruitment and training; and 
- Evolving customer facing services to reflect changing customer demand and interests 

in the context of rising inflation and financial pressures 
 
2.3 The Fund, through its ongoing dialogue with customers, employees, industry and 

governing bodies, has identified risk-based drivers for priority and change which are 
common across a number of themes. These relate to ongoing enhancement of data and 
information management, supporting customers and people through change and 
extending inclusive engagement supported by an outcome orientated approach.  

 
2.4 The Plan, refreshed for 2023-2028, includes spotlights on our targeted investment 

implementation and stewardship, adding value for our customers, operational resilience 
and the development of internal controls, risks management and assurance.  

 
2.5 A copy of the Corporate Plan2023 – 2028, as approved by the Pensions Committee in 

March 2023 is attached at Appendix A.  
 
3.0 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The continued change in both the administration and governance requirements of Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Funds together with increasing regulation 
continues to increase demands on the resources of Funds. The Fund is committed to 
developing its services for members investing in its resources to ensure efficient and 

Page 94



This report is PUBLIC  
 

effective operational practices and procedures are in place, supported by strong 
governance and risk management.  

 
4.0 Legal Implications 
 
4.1 The Fund has a duty to comply with statutory and regulatory requirements in the 

management and administration of the Fund and it is obligated to report matters of 
material significance to the Pensions Regulator where breaches of those standards are 
identified. 

 
5.0 Equalities Implications 
 
5.1 The Fund’s Corporate Plan has been drafted in consideration of its duties under the 

Equality Act. There are no implications.  
 
6.0 Other Potential Implications 
 
6.1 There are no other potential implications. 
 
7.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8.0 Schedule of Appendices  
 
8.1 Appendix A: Corporate Plan 2023 – 2028 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank







































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 97
































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 98































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 99


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 100


































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 101





















 






































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 102





















 
































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 103












































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 104




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 











































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 105



























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 106







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 107























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A

p
p

e
nd

ix
 A

Page 108







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 109


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 110






















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 111











    






































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 112

























































































































































































































































































































































1
1
6
0


























































































































1
2
2
7











































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































2

0
2
1
2

2





3
1




2

0
2
2


2
0
3















3

1








2
0

2
2


1
9
3




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 113




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

p
e

nd
ix

 A

Page 114



This report is PUBLIC  
 

 

  
 
 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 
1. The management responses to questions from the external auditors, Grant Thornton 

LLP, as part of their audit planning [Appendix B]. 
 

2. The external Audit Plan for the 2022/2023 Audit Progress and Indicative Risks Report as 
prepared by Grant Thornton [Appendix A]. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report title External Audit Plan 
  

Originating service Pensions Services  

Accountable employee Christopher Manning 
Email 

Head of Finance 
Christopher.Manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood       Executive Director of Pensions 
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 115

Agenda Item No: 8

mailto:Christopher.Manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Board members of the progress of the external 

audit and the preparation of the Audit Plan for the Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts 
for 2022/23. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The purpose of the Audit Plan is to direct and communicate the audit approach to the 

Pensions Board. The Audit Plan considers the risks to the audit in forming the Audit 
Opinion and details the approach to addressing the key areas of the Fund’s financial 
statements. 
 

3.0 Audit of Accounts 2022/23 
 
3.1 Two documents prepared by Grant Thornton are appended to this report: 
 

o The Audit Progress and Indicative Risks Report [Appendix A] – this sets out the 
high level timings of Grant Thornton’s proposed work on the external audit along 
with other relevant information in advance of completing the Audit Plan. 

 
o Informing the Audit Risk Assessment [Appendix B] – this document sets out some 

of the potential areas of risk with regard to the Annual Report and Accounts. In 
accordance with auditing standards, Grant Thornton are required to formally seek 
the views of the Pensions Committee on these areas. The document provides 
management responses to the questions posed by the auditor and the Pension 
Committee approved these responses as part of the meeting in March 2023. 

 
3.2  Informing the Audit Risk Assessment considers themes of particular relevance to the 

external audit under six areas: 
 
o General Enquiries of Management. 
o Fraud Risk Assessment. 
o Impact of Laws and Regulations. 
o Related Party Considerations. 
o Going Concern. 
o Accounting Estimates Considerations. 

 
3.3 The ultimate outcome of Grant Thornton’s work will be an opinion on the Fund’s Annual 

Statement of Accounts and Annual Report. 
 
3.4 The audited Statement of Accounts, including the audit opinion, will be presented for 

Committee’s formal approval in September ahead of this year’s statutory deadline for 
publication by 30 September 2023. 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



This report is PUBLIC  
 

 

4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 External audit of the Annual Report and Accounts is a fundamental part of the system of 

financial controls that govern the Fund’s work. It provides independent assurance to 
stakeholders that the financial statements provide a true and fair view of the Fund’s 
financial position and transactions for the period in question and that those statements 
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice. 

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 This report contains no direct legal implications.  
 
6.0 Equalities Implications 
 
6.1 This report contains no equalities implications.  
 
7.0 Other Potential Implications 
 
7.1 This report contains no other potential implications.  
 
8.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0  Schedule of Appendices  
 
9.1  Appendix A: External Audit Progress and Indicative Risks Report. 
 
9.2 Appendix B: Informing the Audit Risk Assessment for West Midlands Pension Fund. 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 119



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 120



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 121



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

• • • • •

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 122



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 123



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

• • • •

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 124



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

D
e
la

y
e
d

p
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

a
u

d
it

e
d

lo
ca

l
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

a
cc

o
u

n
ts

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 125



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

D
e
la

y
e
d

p
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

a
u

d
it

e
d

lo
ca

l
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

a
cc

o
u

n
ts

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 126



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

• • • • •

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 127



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

S
to
n
e
w
a
ll
G
o
ld

E
m
p
lo
y
e
r:
G
T
’s
LG

B
T
Q
IA
+
in
cl
u
si
o
n

jo
u
rn
e
y

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 128



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 129



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 130



C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
in

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

• • o o o o • •

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 131



A
p

pe
nd

ix
 A

Page 132



In
fo
rm
in
g
th
e
a
u
d
it
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

fo
r
W
e
s
t
M
id
la
n
d
s
P
e
n
s
io
n
F
u
n
d

2
0
2
2
/2
3

G
ra
n
t
B
P
a
tt
e
rs
o
n











































D
a
v
id
M
R
o
w
le
y










































B
e
n
S
te
v
e
n
s
o
n















4
4
(0
)1
2
1
2
3
2
5
2
8
6

E




















A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 133






























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 134



















































T
a
b
le
o
f
C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e
c
ti
o
n

P
a
g
e












































































































































































































































3

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 135



















































P
u
rp
o
s
e






























































































































































































































































































B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n















































































































































































































































































































































































































































4

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 136



















































G
e
n
e
ra
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































5

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 137



















































G
e
n
e
ra
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e






































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































6

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 138



















































G
e
n
e
ra
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































7

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 139



















































F
ra
u
d

M
a
tt
e
rs
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
fr
a
u
d




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































8

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 140



















































F
ra
u
d
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































9

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 141



















































F
ra
u
d
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
0

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 142



















































F
ra
u
d
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
1

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 143



















































F
ra
u
d
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e










































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
2

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 144



















































F
ra
u
d
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
3

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 145



















































F
ra
u
d
ri
s
k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
4

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 146



















































L
a
w
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

M
a
tt
e
rs
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
5

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 147



















































Im
p
a
c
t
o
f
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
6

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 148



















































Im
p
a
c
t
o
f
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
7

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 149



















































R
e
la
te
d
P
a
rt
ie
s






























































































































 



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
8

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 150



















































R
e
la
te
d
P
a
rt
ie
s

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1
9

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 151



















































R
e
la
te
d
P
a
rt
ie
s

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































2
0

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 152



















































G
o
in
g
C
o
n
c
e
rn











































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 153



















































G
o
in
g
C
o
n
c
e
rn

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 154



















































A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































2
3

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 155



















































A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s
-
G
e
n
e
ra
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A

p
pe

nd
ix

 B

Page 156



















































A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s
-
G
e
n
e
ra
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 157



















































A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s
-
G
e
n
e
ra
l
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
re
s
p
o
n
s
e




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































2
6

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 158



















































A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s

E
s
ti
m
a
te

M
e
th
o
d
/
m
o
d
e
l
u
s
e
d
to

m
a
k
e
th
e
e
s
ti
m
a
te

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
u
s
e
d
to

id
e
n
ti
fy
e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

W
h
e
th
e
r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

h
a
v
e
u
s
e
d
a
n

e
x
p
e
rt

U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
:

-
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
d
e
g
re
e
o
f
u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty

-
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

H
a
s
th
e
re

b
e
e
n
a

c
h
a
n
g
e
in

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

m
e
th
o
d
in

y
e
a
r?





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 159



















































A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s

E
s
ti
m
a
te

M
e
th
o
d
/
m
o
d
e
l
u
s
e
d
to

m
a
k
e
th
e
e
s
ti
m
a
te

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
u
s
e
d
to
id
e
n
ti
fy

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

W
h
e
th
e
r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

h
a
v
e
u
s
e
d
a
n

e
x
p
e
rt

U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
:

-
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
d
e
g
re
e
o
f

u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty

-
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

H
a
s
th
e
re
b
e
e
n

a
c
h
a
n
g
e
in

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

m
e
th
o
d
in

y
e
a
r?















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 160



















































A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s

E
s
ti
m
a
te

M
e
th
o
d
/
m
o
d
e
l
u
s
e
d
to

m
a
k
e
th
e
e
s
ti
m
a
te

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
u
s
e
d
to

id
e
n
ti
fy
e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

W
h
e
th
e
r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

h
a
v
e
u
s
e
d
a
n

e
x
p
e
rt

U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
:

-
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
d
e
g
re
e
o
f
u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty

-
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

H
a
s
th
e
re

b
e
e
n
a

c
h
a
n
g
e
in

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

m
e
th
o
d
in

y
e
a
r?

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 161



















































A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s

E
s
ti
m
a
te

M
e
th
o
d
/
m
o
d
e
l
u
s
e
d
to

m
a
k
e
th
e
e
s
ti
m
a
te

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
u
s
e
d
to

id
e
n
ti
fy
e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

W
h
e
th
e
r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

h
a
v
e
u
s
e
d
a
n

e
x
p
e
rt

U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
:

-
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
d
e
g
re
e
o
f
u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty

-
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

H
a
s
th
e
re

b
e
e
n
a

c
h
a
n
g
e
in

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

m
e
th
o
d
in

y
e
a
r?





























































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 162



















































A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
A
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
E
s
ti
m
a
te
s

E
s
ti
m
a
te

M
e
th
o
d
/
m
o
d
e
l
u
s
e
d
to

m
a
k
e
th
e
e
s
ti
m
a
te

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
u
s
e
d
to

id
e
n
ti
fy
e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

W
h
e
th
e
r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

h
a
v
e
u
s
e
d
a
n

e
x
p
e
rt

U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
:

-
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
o
f
d
e
g
re
e
o
f
u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty

-
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e

e
s
ti
m
a
te
s

H
a
s
th
e
re

b
e
e
n
a

c
h
a
n
g
e
in

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

m
e
th
o
d
in

y
e
a
r?















































































































































































































































































































































































































A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 163















































































































































































































































































































































































































































g
ra
n
tt
h
o
rn
to
n
.c
o
.u
k

A
p

pe
nd

ix
 B

Page 164



This report is PUBLIC  
 

 

 
 

Recommendation for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is recommended to note: 

 
1. The Internal Audit Plan for 2023 – 2024 which was approved by the Pensions Committee 

at their meeting in March 2023. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report title Internal Audit Plan 
  

Originating service Pensions Services  

Accountable employee Amanda MacDonald  
Email 

Client Lead Auditor 
Amanda.macdonald@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood       Executive Director of Pensions 
Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 165

Agenda Item No: 9

mailto:Amanda.macdonald@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide the Board with the outline work programme for internal audit during 2023 – 

2024. 
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The role of internal audit is to provide the Executive Director of Pensions, Section 151 

Officer, the Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board with an independent and 
objective opinion on the Fund’s risk management, internal controls and governance and 
its effectiveness in achieving the Fund’s agreed objectives. In order to provide this 
opinion, we are required to review the risk management and governance process at the 
Fund.  

 
3.0 Work Plan 2023 - 2024 
 
3.1 The plan has been developed taking into account the changing regulatory environment 

and planned service developments together with the Fund’s latest Strategic Risk 
Register. 

 
3.2 A copy of the agreed work plan for 2023 – 2024 is attached at Appendix A.  
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 Internal audit is a key part of the Fund’s governance and financial control framework, and 

seeks to provide assurance that the Fund’s systems, processes and controls are 
operating effectively and in support of the Fund’s overall aims and objectives.  

 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 This report contains no direct legal implications.  
 
6.0 Equalities Implications 
 
6.1 This report contains no direct equalities implications.  
 
7.0 Other Implications 
 
7.1 There are no other implications associated with this report.  
 
8.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
8.1 There are no background papers with this report. 
 
9.0  Schedule of Appendices  
 
9.1  Appendix A - West Midlands Pension Fund Internal Audit Plan 2023 – 2024. 

Page 166



Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

West Midlands Pension Fund

Internal Audit Plan

2023 - 2024

Appendix A

Page 167



2

1 Introduction

2 Assessing the effectiveness of risk management and governance

3 Assessing the effectiveness of the system of control

4 The framework of assurance

5 Developing an internal audit plan

6 Considerations required of the Pensions Committee and senior management

7 How the internal audit service will be delivered

8 The internal audit plan

Appendix A

Page 168



3

1 Introduction

1.1 The purpose of internal audit is to provide the Pensions Committee, Board and Executive

Director with an independent and objective opinion on risk management, control and

governance and their effectiveness in achieving the Fund’s agreed objectives. In order to

provide this opinion, we are required to consider annually the risk management and

governance processes within the Fund. We also need to review on a cyclical basis, the

operation of the internal control systems. It should be pointed out that internal audit is not a

substitute for effective internal control. The true role of internal audit is to contribute to

control by examining, evaluating, and reporting to management on its adequacy and

effectiveness.

1.2 The purpose of this document is to provide the Fund with an internal audit plan for the 2023-

24 financial year. This plan has been approved by Senior Management, individual audit

timings and terms of reference will be agreed with the appropriate managers during the

year.

2 Assessing the effectiveness of risk management and governance

2.1 The effectiveness of risk management and governance will be reviewed, where appropriate,
annually, to gather evidence to support our opinion to Pensions Committee, Board and
Executive Director. This opinion is reflected in the general level of assurance given in our
annual report and where appropriate within separate reports in areas that will touch upon
risk management and governance.

3 Assessing the effectiveness of the system of control

3.1 In order to be adequate and effective, management should:

 Establish and monitor the achievement of the Fund’s objectives and facilitate policy

and decision making.

 Identify, assess and manage the risks to achieving the Fund’s objectives.

 Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources.

 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations.

 Safeguard the Fund’s assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including those
arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption.

 Ensure the integrity and reliability of information, accounts and data.

These objectives are achieved by the implementation of effective management processes
and through the operation of a sound system of internal control.

Appendix A

Page 169



4

4  The framework of assurance

4.1  The framework of assurance available to satisfy an organisation that the risks to its
objectives, and the risks inherent in undertaking its work, have been properly identified and
are being managed by controls that are adequately designed and effective in operation, will
comprise a variety of sources and not only the work of internal audit.

Assessing the risk of auditable areas within the assurance framework

4.2 Risk is defined as “The threat that an event or action will adversely affect an organisation's
ability to achieve its business objectives and execute its strategies.”
Source: Economist Intelligence Unit - Executive Briefing.

4.3 There are a number of key factors for assessing the degree of assurance need within
the auditable area. These have been used in our assessment of each auditable area
and are based on the following factors:

• Materiality

• Business impact

• Audit experience

• Risk

• Potential for fraud

5 Developing an internal audit plan

5.1 The internal audit plan is based, wherever possible, on management’s risk priorities, as set
out in the Fund’s own risk analysis/assessment. The plan has been designed to, wherever
possible, cover the key risks identified by such risk analysis. In particular, management
have specifically requested that audits are linked to key risks, challenges and performance
issues.

5.2 In establishing the plan, the relationship between risk and frequency of audit remains
absolute. The level of risk will always determine the frequency by which auditable themes
and areas will be subject to audit. This ensures that key risk themes and areas are looked
at on a frequent basis. The aim of this approach is to ensure the maximum level of
assurance can be provided with the minimum level of audit coverage.

It is recognised that a good internal audit plan should achieve a balance between clearly
setting out the planned audit work and retaining flexibility to respond to changing risks and
priorities during the year.

Auditor’s judgement will be applied in assessing the resources required for each audit
identified in the plan.

Appendix A

Page 170



5

5.3  Included within the plan, in addition to audit days for field assignments are:

• a small contingency allocation, which will be utilised when the need arises, for example,
special projects, investigations, advice and assistance, unplanned and ad-hoc work as
and when requested. This allocation may be increased at the request and approval of
management.

• a follow-up allocation, which will be utilised to assess the degree of implementation
achieved in relation to key recommendations agreed by management during the prior
year.

• an audit management allocation, which is used for management, quality control, client
and external audit liaison and for preparation for, and attendance at various
management meetings and committees etc.

6 Considerations required of the Pensions Committee, Board and

senior management

Does the plan include all the areas which would be expected to be subject to internal

audit?

Does the plan cover the key risks as they are recognised?

Is the allocation of audit resource accepted, and agreed as appropriate, given the level

of risk identified?

7 How the internal audit service will be delivered

Resources required
The audit plan will be delivered by the City of Wolverhampton Council’s internal audit team.

Communication of results
The outcome of internal audit reviews is communicated by way of written reports and where
appropriate direct feedback or action plans. However, should a serious matter come to
light, this will be reported to the appropriate level of management without delay.

Staffing
Employees are recruited, trained, and provided with opportunities for continuing
professional development and are sponsored to undertake relevant professional
qualifications. All employees are subject to the City of Wolverhampton Council’s
professional conversation process, which leads to an identification of training needs. In this
way, we ensure that employees are suitably skilled to deliver the internal audit service. This
includes the delivery of specialist skills which are provided by staff within the service with
the relevant knowledge, skills, and experience.

Appendix A

Page 171



6

Quality assurance
All audit work undertaken is subject to quality assurance procedures as required by the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Combined assurance
Where appropriate we will work in conjunction with the company’s external auditors to
ensure that the assurance both internal and external audit can provide, is focussed in the
most efficient manner and that any duplication is eliminated.

Appendix A

Page 172



8
.
2
0
2
3
-2
0
2
4
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
la
n

s
p
e
c
if
ic
S
y
s
te
m
s
R
e
v
ie
w
s
-
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
ri
s
k
re
g
is
te
rs
/
n
e
w
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
/
d
ir
e
c
to
r
re
q
u
e
s
ts

S
p
e
c
if
ic
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
R
e
v
ie
w
s

A
u
d
it
A
re
a

A
u
d
it
/
T
im
in
g

D
e
ta
ils
/
A
u
d
it
N
e
e
d
s
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

P
e
n
s
io
n
F
u
n
d
M
e
m
b
e
r

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
Q
1

A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
in
p
la
c
e
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
e
re
a
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
fo
r
F
u
n
d
m
e
m
b
e
rs
,
in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
s
u
p
p
o
rt
re
g
a
rd
in
g

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ti
e
s
a
n
d
c
o
s
t
o
f
liv
in
g
is
s
u
e
s
.
(
M
e
d
iu
m
).

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

C
o
n
fl
ic
ts
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
Q
1

T
o
p
ro
v
id
e
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
th
a
t
th
e
c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
p
o
lic
y
a
d
o
p
te
d
b
y
P
e
n
s
io
n
s

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
a
n
d
e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
in
to
F
u
n
d
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
(
M
e
d
iu
m
).

F
in
a
n
c
e

F
u
n
d
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
Q
3

A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
fo
llo
w
in
g
th
e
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
to
n
e
w
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
a
s
a
re
s
u
lt
o
f
th
e

F
in
a
n
c
e
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
P
ro
je
c
t.
(H
ig
h
).

F
in
a
n
c
e

D
e
b
t
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
Q
4

T
o
p
ro
v
id
e
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
th
a
t
th
e
d
e
b
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
p
o
lic
y
a
d
o
p
te
d
b
y
P
e
n
s
io
n
s

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
a
n
d
e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
in
to
F
u
n
d
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
.
(M
e
d
iu
m
).

F
in
a
n
c
e

B
a
n
k
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

(N
o
n
N
a
tw
e
s
t
b
a
n
k

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
)
Q
4

A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
b
a
n
k
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
to
p
ro
v
id
e
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
c
c
e
s
s
/t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
,

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
re
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
s
.
(M
e
d
iu
m
).

P
e
n
s
io
n
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

E
m
p
lo
y
e
r
O
n
b
o
a
rd
in
g
Q
2

A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
a
n
d
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
a
d
o
p
te
d
p
ri
o
r
to
a
c
c
e
p
ti
n
g
n
e
w
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
in
to

th
e
F
u
n
d
(H
ig
h
).

P
e
n
s
io
n
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Q
2

A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
fo
r
th
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
o
f
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts

re
g
a
rd
in
g
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
fr
o
m
m
e
m
b
e
rs
.
(M
e
d
iu
m
).

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
ts

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

a
n
d
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
Q
3

T
o
re
v
ie
w
th
e
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
,
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
o
n
g
o
in
g

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
ts
re
ta
in
e
d
b
y
th
e
F
u
n
d
.
(H
ig
h
).

A
pp

e
nd

ix
 A

Page 173



8

O
th
e
r
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk

F
o
llo
w
u
p
R
e
v
ie
w
s
-
Q
3

T
o
re
v
ie
w
th
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
a
g
re
e
d
k
e
y
a
c
ti
o
n
s
fr
o
m
th
e
p
re
v
io
u
s
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
y
e
a
r

C
o
u
n
te
r
F
ra
u
d

T
h
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
th
e
C
a
b
in
e
t
O
ff
ic
e
’s
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
ra
u
d
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
d
a
ta
m
a
tc
h
in
g
e
x
e
rc
is
e
a
n
d
a
n
y
o
th
e
r

w
o
rk
re
la
ti
n
g
to
c
o
u
n
te
r
fr
a
u
d
a
s
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
b
y
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
e
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l
c
h
e
c
k
s

fo
r
n
e
w
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
re
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
to
th
e
F
u
n
d
.

L
G
P
S
C
R
e
v
ie
w

In
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h
th
e
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
,
w
e
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
in
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
in
g
g
ro
u
p
w
it
h

p
a
rt
n
e
r
fu
n
d
a
u
d
it
o
rs
.
O
n
a
ro
ta
ti
o
n
a
l
b
a
s
is
,
p
a
rt
n
e
r
fu
n
d
a
u
d
it
o
rs
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
a
n
n
u
a
l
re
v
ie
w
s
.
F
o
r

2
0
2
3
-2
4
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
y
e
a
r,
w
e
a
re
d
u
e
to
a
u
d
it
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
.

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
a
n
d
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

S
p
e
c
ia
l
p
ro
je
c
ts
,
a
d
v
ic
e
,
a
n
d
a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
a
s
a
n
d
w
h
e
n
re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
e
n
s
io
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
a
n
d
B
o
a
rd

T
h
e
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
c
o
m
m
it
te
e
re
p
o
rt
s
a
n
d
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
a
t
c
o
m
m
it
te
e
a
n
d
th
e
B
o
a
rd
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

T
h
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
.

A
pp

e
nd

ix
 A

Page 174



This report is PUBLIC  
 

04. App B. KPIs.pdf

 
Recommendation for decision: 
 
The Pension Board are asked to approve: 
 

1. The Pension Board appointments for the 2023-24 municipal year.  
 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in the current 
environment.  

2. The Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support service 
delivery.  

3. The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023  

  
Report title Compliance and Assurance   
  

Originating service Pension Services  

Accountable employee Rachel Howe 
Email 

 Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance 
 Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email  

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 175

Agenda Item No: 10

mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 

1.0     Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide the Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed 

scheme. 
 
2.0 Local Pension Board Appointments 2023-24 
 
2.1 At their meeting on 24 January the Board agreed, in accordance with their terms of 

reference, to form an appointments panel to consider applicants for the employer 
representative due for nomination. Applications were submitted to the panel who have 
unanimously agreed to recommend the re-appointment of Paul Johnson as the Local 
Authority Employer Representative.   

 
2.2  In accordance with the appointments process, the Fund are engaging with Unison 

regarding the member representative seat due for nomination. An update on the 
selection process will be provided to the next meeting of the Local Pensions Board.   

 
2.3 It is noted that nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair for the 2023-24 municipal year 

will take place at the first Pensions Board meeting of the new municipal year scheduled 
for July 2023.  

 
3.0  Risk Register   
 
3.1  Attached at Appendix A is the Strategic Risk Register for this quarter, which is showing 

movement in the focus of risks for the organisation.  
 
3.2 The Risk Register captures the potential for impact in the Fund’s service delivery as a 

forward-looking review, together with horizon scanning for changes which may impact or 
require change to the Fund’s processes and delivery model. As such the register is 
refreshed each quarter. This quarter, there are changes to the areas of focus and the 
directional arrows therefore reflect the trend on the risk assessment (as opposed to 
quarter-by-quarter comparison).  

 
3.3 This quarter the Fund is reporting a new risk on Operational Resilience, highlighting the 

need to grow and develop our people along with a number of business change initiatives 
and system developments. In conjunction with that, the Fund is alive to the need to test 
and challenge our suppliers on their resilience to ensure they are able to keep up with 
the pace of change across our organisation and wider Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) as a whole.  

 
3.4 We continue to work with our employers to understand the current economic constraints 

on their operational budgets at this time and have removed the risk reported last quarter 
regarding member behaviours, noting the action and support offered by the Fund is now 
adopted and formalised within our standard package of support.  

 

Page 176



This report is PUBLIC  
 

3.5 Due to the timing of this quarter’s reporting, we have added the cyclical risk of potential 
change in our Governing Body Memberships, noting the annual cycle of elections and 
nominations due to take place.  

 
4.0 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
4.1 Attached at Appendix B are the Fund’s KPIs as at Q3 2022/23.  
 
4.2 Further details with regards to the Fund’s Operational KPIs is covered in the Pension 

Administration Report. The team continues to flex resource to meet demands. 
 
4.3  Engagement with the Fund from our customer base continues to be high, this is 

demonstrated by the high volume of communications (calls and emails) received into the 
Fund’s contact centre, which alongside capacity constraints, continue to impact the 
Fund’s ability to meet KPIs in responding to those customer contacts. This is an area 
where recruitment and training continues and is also an area we expect to see increased 
capacity following development and roll out of the pension administration system. 

  
5.0 Compliance Monitoring  
 
5.1 Data Protection  
 
5.1.1 This quarter the Fund are reporting three data breaches, a decrease of four from the 

previous quarter. The Governance Team continue to monitor breaches and identify 
actions to improve controls. The Fund hasn’t identified any systemic issues in the 
management of its data and continues to work with service areas to implement ongoing 
enhancements in systems and individual knowledge. In addition, the team also continue 
to monitor completion of the City of Wolverhampton Council’s (CWC) mandatory data 
protection training, issuing reminders to staff to ensure refresher training is completed in 
accordance with deadlines set.  
 

5.2 Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests  
 
5.2.1 The Fund received four FOI requests during the quarter, three were dealt with in 

accordance with the deadlines set by CWC, with one being granted an extension to allow 
information to be validated. As previously reported, requests are administered by CWC 
who are ultimately responsible for responding to requests. CWC set internal deadlines for 
response to ensure compliance with statutory timescales. All requests were responded to 
within the statutory deadline.   

 
5.2.2  It is noted that the complexity of FOI requests received continues to increase. Whilst 

most requests relate to investment holdings, information on Fund membership data and 
staffing and equality training has also been requested this quarter.   

 
5.3 Subject Access Requests (SARs) 
 

Page 177



This report is PUBLIC  
 

5.3.1 The number of SAR requests received continued to increase steadily during the quarter, 
with eight requests received in total. The majority of these requests continue to be from 
third parties seeking information in connection with a member’s decision to transfer their 
pension out of the LGPS. Authority from the member is always sought prior to providing 
information to third parties. It is noted that current national campaigns regarding pension 
scams is creating heightened awareness and is potentially driving the increase in 
information requests. All requests were responded to in accordance with the set 
deadlines.   

 
5.3.2 The Fund has previously reported on the work we are doing in line with the Pension 

Regulator’s Pension Scam Awareness campaign and ensures all members are kept 
informed of any personal information requests regarding their data.  

   
6.0 Governing Body Training  
 
6.1 Governing Body training events undertaken during the reporting period included the 

following topics, with analysis undertaken to ensure the program complies with 
knowledge areas identified in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Governing Body Knowledge and Skills Framework; 

 
• An update on emerging risks and the 2022 Actuarial Valuation, including an update 

on the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) review 
• An update on the review of the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) 
• An update on Responsible Investment, including information regarding the LGPS 

Climate Change and Risk Consultation 
• An investment Markets Update 
• Information on the management of the Fund’s property portfolio 
• Pension Awareness - An update from the Fund’s Member Services team 
• Updates and media roundups issued by the Governance team  

 
6.2 Training has been delivered both internally and by a number of 3rd parties including the 

Fund’s Actuary, Investment Consultants, Investment Managers and the Fund’s Legal 
Advisors.   
 

6.3  Training hours continue to be recorded by the Governance team and reported in the 
Fund’s KPIs, and the online learning library for Governing Body members continues to be 
updated regularly and provides a variety of training material (including from recent 
events).  

 
7.0 Financial Implications 
 
7.1 Effective monitoring of the management arrangements, facilitated by timely disclosure of 

information, is required to ensure the Fund is well placed to ensure the delivery of its 
administration, funding and investment strategy. Poor management of the Fund’s data, 
financial information and assets can result in additional costs and detract from 
investment returns. 

 

Page 178



This report is PUBLIC  
 

7.2 Failure by the Fund to meet statutory requirements of effective governance and 
administration could result in fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator (tPR).  

 
8.0 Legal Implications 
 
8.1 Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in 

enforcement action and fines from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.  
 
9.0 Equalities Implications 
 
9.1 There are no direct equalities implications.  
 
10.0 Other Potential Implications 
 
10.1 There are no other potential implications. 
 
11.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
11.1  Pledge to combat pension scams | The Pensions Regulator 
 
12.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
12.1 Appendix A: Risk Register 
 
12.2 Appendix B: Key Performance Indicators  
 

Page 179

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/pension-scams/pledge-to-combat-pension-scams


This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX

A
:
W
e
s
t
M
id
la
n
d
s
P
e
n
s
io
n
F
u
n
d
–
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r

M
a
rc
h
2
0
2
3

R
is
k

R
e
f

R
is
k
T
h
e
m
e

R
is
k
T
it
le

C
u
rr
e
n
t
D
ri
v
e
rs

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ri
o
ri
ty

P
re
-c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

P
o
s
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

R
is
k

O
u
tc
o
m
e

p
o
s
t

c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
e
a
s
o
n
fo
r
c
o
n
c
e
rn
a
n
d
a
c
ti
o
n
s

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
to
m
it
ig
a
te
ri
s
k

O
ff
ic
e
r

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

1
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

M
a
rk
e
t
V
o
la
ti
lit
y

G
lo
b
a
l
m
a
rk
e
ts
re
a
c
ti
n
g
to

g
e
o
p
o
lit
ic
a
l
is
s
u
e
s
a
n
d
s
h
o
rt
-

te
rm

v
o
la
ti
lit
y
im
p
a
c
ti
n
g

lo
n
g
e
r
te
rm

o
u
tl
o
o
k

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

S
te
w
a
rd
s
h
ip

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
is
a
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm

in
v
e
s
to
r

ta
k
in
g
a
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
to

a
s
s
e
t
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
b
u
ild
in
g

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t

p
o
rt
fo
lio
in
o
rd
e
r
to
h
e
lp
m
a
n
a
g
e

th
e
im
p
a
c
t
o
f
s
h
o
rt
-t
e
rm

m
a
rk
e
t

v
o
la
ti
lit
y
.

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
m
o
n
it
o
rs
it
s

a
s
s
e
t
p
o
s
it
io
n
in
g
a
n
d
b
ro
a
d
e
r

m
a
rk
e
ts
a
n
d
h
a
s
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a

fu
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l
re
v
ie
w
o
f
it
s

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t
s
tr
a
te
g
y
in
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h
th
e
tr
ie
n
n
ia
l
a
c
tu
a
ri
a
l

v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
u
p
d
a
te
s
b
e
in
g

re
fl
e
c
te
d
in
th
e
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t

S
tr
a
te
g
y
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t.

A
D
I

E
m
p
lo
y
e
r
fu
n
d
in
g

a
n
d
b
u
d
g
e
t
s
tr
e
tc
h

P
re
s
s
u
re
o
n
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r

c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
b
e
in
g
d
ri
v
e
n
b
y

ri
s
in
g
in
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
c
o
s
ts

a
g
a
in
s
t
a
b
a
c
k
d
ro
p
o
f
b
u
d
g
e
t

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
a
n
d
re
d
u
c
e
d

in
c
o
m
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
.

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
is
s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
to
th
e

is
s
u
e
s
fa
c
in
g
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
a
n
d
h
a
s

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
a
b
ro
a
d
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

p
ro
g
ra
m
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
2
0
2
2

a
c
tu
a
ri
a
l
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
.
T
h
e
k
e
y
ri
s
k

b
e
in
g
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r
d
e
fa
u
lt

o
n
lia
b
ili
ti
e
s
th
ro
u
g
h
n
o
n
-p
a
y
m
e
n
t

o
f
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
/o
r
h
e
ig
h
te
n
e
d

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
re
v
ie
w

e
m
p
lo
y
e
r
c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t,
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g

a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
‘w
a
tc
h
lis
t’
o
f
th
e

e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
th
e

g
re
a
te
s
t
ri
s
k
,
w
it
h
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
w
it
h
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
.

A
D
P

R
is
in
g
c
o
s
ts
a
n
d

in
fl
a
ti
o
n
o
n
g
o
o
d
s

a
n
d
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

re
c
e
iv
e
d

A
n
n
u
a
l
in
fl
a
ti
o
n
u
p
lif
t
o
n

c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
g
o
o
d
s
a
n
d

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
m
a
y
s
e
e
a
n

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
in
c
re
a
s
e
in
F
u
n
d

c
o
s
ts
a
n
d
b
u
d
g
e
t
in
to
n
e
x
t

y
e
a
r

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
e
a
rl
y

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
w
it
h
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
to

id
e
n
ti
fy
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
in

c
o
s
ts
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
it
s
b
u
d
g
e
t

p
la
n
n
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
h
a
s
a
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
p
ro
c
e
s
s
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d

b
y
C
W
C
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t
w
h
ic
h

H
O
F

Page 181



R
is
k

R
e
f

R
is
k
T
h
e
m
e

R
is
k
T
it
le

C
u
rr
e
n
t
D
ri
v
e
rs

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ri
o
ri
ty

P
re
-c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

P
o
s
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

R
is
k

O
u
tc
o
m
e

p
o
s
t

c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
e
a
s
o
n
fo
r
c
o
n
c
e
rn
a
n
d
a
c
ti
o
n
s

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
to
m
it
ig
a
te
ri
s
k

O
ff
ic
e
r

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

p
ro
v
id
e
s
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
in
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t

te
rm
s
a
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.

2
K
e
e
p
in
g
p
a
c
e
w
it
h

c
h
a
n
g
e

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g

T
h
e
s
c
a
le
o
f
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g

m
u
lt
ip
le
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
c
h
a
n
g
e

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
(d
ri
v
e
n
b
y

re
g
u
la
to
ry
a
n
d
s
e
rv
ic
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
n
e
e
d
s
),
re
s
u
lt
s

in
c
o
n
fl
ic
ti
n
g
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
fo
r

in
te
rn
a
l
re
s
o
u
rc
e
a
n
d

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
re
lia
n
c
e
o
n
th
e

d
e
liv
e
ry
b
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s
to

m
e
e
t
th
e
F
u
n
d
’s
s
ta
tu
to
ry

d
e
a
d
lin
e
s
.

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
a
n
d

R
is
k

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e

it
s
e
lf
o
n
th
e
n
e
e
d
fo
r
b
u
s
in
e
s
s

c
h
a
n
g
e
,
to
g
e
th
e
r
w
it
h
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
f

s
u
p
p
lie
rs
a
n
d
th
e
d
e
liv
e
ry
o
f

c
h
a
n
g
e
in
lin
e
w
it
h
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

s
e
t.

A
ll
S
e
n
io
r

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t/
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e

c
a
p
a
b
ili
ti
e
s

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
a
n
d

c
h
a
n
g
e
in
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
p
ro
c
e
s
s

is
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
n
e
e
d
to
e
n
s
u
re

th
e
F
u
n
d
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
tr
a
in
s
it
s

p
e
o
p
le
,
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
in
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e

a
n
d
s
k
ill
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
.

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
a
n
d

R
is
k

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
d
e
v
e
lo
p
it
s

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
a
n
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
u
p
s
k
ill
in
g
o
f

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
w
h
e
re
c
h
a
n
g
e
o
c
c
u
rs
.

H
o
P
C
S

E
m
p
lo
y
e
r
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s

T
h
e
a
b
ili
ty
o
f
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
to

k
e
e
p
p
a
c
e
w
it
h
th
e
b
u
s
in
e
s
s

c
h
a
n
g
e
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
b
y
th
e
F
u
n
d
a
n
d

th
e
n
e
e
d
to
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly

re
s
o
u
rc
e
th
e
ir
d
e
liv
e
ry
a
n
d

o
n
g
o
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
.

T
o
g
e
th
e
r
w
it
h
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r’
s
o
w
n

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
a
n
d
c
a
p
a
c
it
y

n
e
e
d
s
in
s
u
p
p
o
rt
o
f
th
e

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
is
c
o
n
s
c
io
u
s
to
th
e

im
p
a
c
t
it
s
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
c
h
a
n
g
e

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
w
ill
h
a
v
e
o
n
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs

a
n
d
is

p
ro
v
id
in
g
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
s
u
p
p
o
rt
a
n
d

tr
a
in
in
g
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
ro
ll
o
u
t
o
f

th
e
n
e
w
a
d
m
in
s
y
s
te
m
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n

to
g
e
th
e
r
w
it
h
th
e
n
e
w
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
.

.

A
D
P

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
a
n
d

In
te
rn
a
l
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

P
ro
c
e
s
s

in
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
a
n
d

m
a
n
u
a
l
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n

L
in
k
e
d
to
th
e
b
u
s
in
e
s
s

c
h
a
n
g
e
,
a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
a
c
ro
s
s
a
ll
s
e
rv
ic
e

a
re
a
s
a
re
u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
a

p
ro
g
ra
m
o
f
tr
a
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
w
h
ic
h

in
c
re
a
s
e
s
th
e
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
fo
r

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
re
v
ie
w
it
s

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
a
n
d
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
to
id
e
n
ti
fy

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t
m
e
th
o
d
s
o
f
w
o
rk
in
g
.
A

n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
a
re
re
lia
n
t
o
n

th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
s
y
s
te
m
s
fo
r
w
h
ic
h
th
e

F
u
n
d
is
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
w
it
h
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
.

A
ll
S
e
n
io
r

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

Page 182



R
is
k

R
e
f

R
is
k
T
h
e
m
e

R
is
k
T
it
le

C
u
rr
e
n
t
D
ri
v
e
rs

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ri
o
ri
ty

P
re
-c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

P
o
s
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

R
is
k

O
u
tc
o
m
e

p
o
s
t

c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
e
a
s
o
n
fo
r
c
o
n
c
e
rn
a
n
d
a
c
ti
o
n
s

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
to
m
it
ig
a
te
ri
s
k

O
ff
ic
e
r

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

m
a
n
u
a
l
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
w
h
ile

th
o
s
e
s
y
s
te
m
s
a
re

o
n
b
o
a
rd
e
d
.

4
D
a
ta
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
d
e
m
a
n
d
s

fo
r
d
a
ta
a
n
d
d
a
ta

re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
th
e
a
b
ili
ty

o
f
th
e
F
u
n
d
to
m
e
e
t

s
ta
tu
to
ry
a
n
d

re
p
o
rt
in
g

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
k
e
y
p
ro
je
c
ts
re
lia
n
t

o
n
d
a
ta
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d

re
c
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
s
y
s
te
m

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
)

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
a
n
d

R
is
k

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
e
n
h
a
n
c
e

it
s
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
n
d
a
ta
q
u
a
lit
y
w
it
h

o
n
g
o
in
g
fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
re
s
o
u
rc
e
to

a
c
h
ie
v
e
k
e
y
d
a
ta
ta
rg
e
ts
,
a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
w
it
h
d
a
ta
fo
c
u
s
s
e
d

p
ro
je
c
ts
s
u
c
h
a
s
M
c
C
lo
u
d
.

H
G
R
A

A
D
P

H
O
P
s

E
v
o
lv
in
g
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

fo
r
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
a
n
d

re
p
o
rt
in
g

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
w
a
it

fo
r
d
e
la
y
e
d
re
g
u
la
to
ry

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
a
re
a
s
s
u
c
h
a
s

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
a
n
d
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t

h
o
w
e
v
e
r
th
e
re
is
a
g
e
n
e
ra
l

s
h
if
t
to
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g

w
it
h
a
fo
c
u
s
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
s
u
p
p
o
rt
tr
e
n
d

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
.

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
a
n
d

R
is
k

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
to
d
e
v
e
lo
p
it
s

p
ro
g
ra
m
o
f
d
a
ta
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d

re
p
o
rt
in
g

H
G
R
A

5
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

T
h
e
re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
in
o
u
r

h
u
m
a
n
c
a
p
it
a
l
a
n
d

o
u
r
a
b
ili
ty
to

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
,

re
s
o
u
rc
e
,
tr
a
in
,
a
n
d

re
ta
in
.

W
it
h
a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
o
n

th
e
h
o
ri
z
o
n
,
fr
o
m
b
u
s
in
e
s
s

c
h
a
n
g
e
to
re
g
u
la
to
ry
c
h
a
n
g
e
,

th
e
a
b
ili
ty
o
f
th
e
F
u
n
d
to

e
n
s
u
re
it
s
p
e
o
p
le
re
s
o
u
rc
e
is

a
b
le
to
a
d
a
p
t
a
n
d
k
e
e
p
p
a
c
e

w
ill
b
e
k
e
y
to
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
s
.

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
is
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
w
o
rk
in
g

a
c
ro
s
s
a
ll
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
o
n

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
lif
e
c
y
c
le
fr
o
m

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
O
D
.
T
ra
in
in
g
is

b
o
th
b
e
s
p
o
k
e
p
e
r
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,

ro
le
p
ro
fi
le
a
n
d
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
fo
r

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
g
ro
w
th
a
n
d
fu
tu
re

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
a
t
th
e
F
u
n
d
.

T
h
e
s
e
a
re
c
o
m
p
lim
e
n
te
d
w
it
h
o
u
r

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
p
la
n
s
a
n
d

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l
p
ro
c
e
s
s
,
w
h
ic
h
is

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
th
e
y
e
a
r
a
s

p
e
r
th
e
g
o
a
ls
s
e
t.

E
D
O
P

T
h
e
re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
o
f
o
u
r

th
ir
d
-p
a
rt
y
s
u
p
p
lie
rs

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
o
u
r
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
a
re

a
b
le
to
m
e
e
t
o
u
r
o
n
g
o
in
g

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
c
h
a
n
g
e
n
e
e
d
s
.

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
ro
u
g
h
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
o
u
r

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
a
n
d
s
u
p
p
lie
r

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
,
w
e
a
re
a
b
le
to

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
th
e
ir
a
b
ili
ty
to
c
o
p
e
w
it
h

c
h
a
n
g
e
a
n
d
re
s
p
o
n
d
to
o
u
r

g
ro
w
in
g
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
a
n
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r

n
e
e
d
s
.

A
ll
S
e
n
io
r

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

Page 183



R
is
k

R
e
f

R
is
k
T
h
e
m
e

R
is
k
T
it
le

C
u
rr
e
n
t
D
ri
v
e
rs

C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
ri
o
ri
ty

P
re
-c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

P
o
s
t
C
o
n
tr
o
l

R
is
k

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

R
is
k

O
u
tc
o
m
e

p
o
s
t

c
o
n
tr
o
l

R
e
a
s
o
n
fo
r
c
o
n
c
e
rn
a
n
d
a
c
ti
o
n
s

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
to
m
it
ig
a
te
ri
s
k

O
ff
ic
e
r

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

C
y
b
e
r
a
n
d
D
is
a
s
te
r

R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
o
u
r
s
y
s
te
m
s
a
n
d

th
o
s
e
o
f
o
u
r
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
c
a
n

w
it
h
s
ta
n
d
d
is
a
s
te
r
a
n
d

re
c
o
v
e
r
to
p
ro
v
id
e
c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y

in
o
u
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
d
e
liv
e
ry
.

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
a
n
a
n
n
u
a
l

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
a
n
d
te
s
ti
n
g
p
ro
g
ra
m
o
f

a
ll
o
f
it
s
IT
s
y
s
te
m
s
a
n
d
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
,

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
a
ll
a
re
c
a
p
a
b
le
o
f

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
a
n
d
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
to

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
e
x
te
rn
a
l
th
re
a
ts
.

H
O
P
s

H
G
R
A

6
A
n
n
u
a
l
E
le
c
ti
o
n

C
y
c
le

T
h
e
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
fo
r

c
h
a
n
g
e
in
o
u
r

G
o
v
e
rn
in
g
B
o
d
y

m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
s

A
n
n
u
a
l
c
y
c
le
o
f
e
le
c
ti
o
n
s
to

b
e
h
e
ld
in
M
a
y
h
a
v
e
th
e

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
to
c
h
a
n
g
e
g
o
v
e
rn
in
g

b
o
d
y
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
s
a
n
d

im
p
a
c
t
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
a
n
d

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e

m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
a
s
a
w
h
o
le
.

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e

P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
e
F
u
n
d
h
a
s
a
ro
b
u
s
t
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d
tr
a
in
in
g
p
ro
g
ra
m
fo
r

g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
b
o
d
y
m
e
m
b
e
rs
w
h
ic
h

s
e
e
k
s
to
d
e
v
e
lo
p
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
w
it
h

te
rm

o
f
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
.

H
G
R
A

O
ff
ic
e
rs
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
fo
r
A
c
ti
o
n

E
D
O
P

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
P
e
n
s
io
n
s

A
D
I

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
D
ir
e
c
to
r
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
ts

A
D
P

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t
D
ir
e
c
to
r
P
e
n
s
io
n
s

H
O
P
s

H
e
a
d
o
f
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

H
G
R
A

H
e
a
d
o
f
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
,
R
is
k
a
n
d

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e

H
O
F

H
e
a
d
o
f
F
in
a
n
c
e

H
o
P
C
S

H
e
a
d
o
f
P
e
o
p
le
a
n
d
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

Page 184



Appendix B

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
 

  

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report Title  Pensions Administration  
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Amy Regler 
Email 

Head of Operations 
Amy.Regler@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email 
 

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The 8 applications approved for employer admission into the Fund as detailed in Appendix 
E.  
 

2. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions. 
 

3. Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers. 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 187

Agenda Item No: 11

mailto:Amy.Regler@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To inform the Pensions Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the Pensions 
Administration Service areas during the period 1 October – 31 December 2022.    

 
2.0 Background 

 
2.1 The Fund provides a pension administration service covering employer, customer and 

member services, data processing, benefit operations, payroll and systems/technical 
support. A report is provided to Pensions Board on a quarterly basis to assist monitoring of 
the activity and performance of these functions during that period.  

 
3.0 Scheme Activity  

  
3.1 Membership Movement – Main Fund 
 
3.1.1 The total number of scheme member records in the Fund at 31 December 2022 stands at 

342,948 with an overall increase since September 2022. The long-term trend over a 12 year 
period in membership continues to illustrate a move towards a more mature profile 
whereby, in general, pensioners and deferred memberships continue to rise. 

. 
 

  Membership as at                                   
30 September 2022 

Net Movements 
during the period 

Membership as at                                   
31 December 2022 

Active Members 110,930 1,050 111,980 
Deferred Members 115,961    227 116,188 
Pensioner Members 113,637 1,143 114,780 
Total Members 340,528 2,420 342,948 

 

 
 
 

Page 188



This report is PUBLIC  
 

3.2 Workflow Statistics  
 
3.2.1  The process analysis statistics in Appendix A show details of overall workflow within the 

Pensions Administration Service during the period 1 October to 31 December 2022. During 
the period covered by this report, 40,304 administrative processes were commenced, a 
slight decrease compared to the previous reporting period and 40,977 processes were 
completed. 

 
3.2.2 As we continue to see an increase in member movements, the workload volumes will also 

naturally remain high. On 31 December 2022 there were 41,558 items of work outstanding. 
This represents a decrease of 379 items outstanding compared to 30 September 2022 
(41,937). This decrease is mainly due to the focused work being undertaken to continue to 
target the clearance of work in preparation for the change in pension administration 
software system.   

 
3.2.3 Of the 41,558 items of work outstanding, 4,369 items were pending as a result of 

information awaited from a third party e.g. scheme members, employers or transferring 
authorities and 37,189 processes are now either proceeding to the next stage of the 
process or through to final completion.  

 
3.2.4 Appendix B provides a summary of the key processes completed by volume across benefit 

operational functions e.g. calculating benefits for retirements, pensioner member data 
changes as well as the maintenance of updating membership details. This shows the trend 
of lower joiners and higher leavers and retirements year to date is consistent with the tail off 
in growth of membership and increase in deferred and pensioner membership. In addition, 
the Fund continues to monitor the level of members opting out of the scheme which remain 
at a low level, and is currently c57% lower than for the previous year to date. Overall the 
last six months have seen an increase in processing across a number of key areas, 
indicating another year on year increase.  

 
4.0 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
4.1 The Fund uses a number of KPIs to measure performance when processing items such as 

Transfers In and Out, Retirements and Deferred Retirements.  
 

4.2 During the period, one KPI did not achieve target on two occurrences, as follows: 
 

• Deferred Retirements – payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record 
(October and December)  

o The KPI fell short of the target, achieving 87% in October 2022 and 81% in 
December 2022, due to shorter timescales for payroll closedown. 
However, on average casework was completed within 4 days against the 
target of 5 over the period and the KPI is achieving the target of 90%, 
cumulatively, year to date.   

 
4.3 Further information on achievement of target KPIs by process by month over the reporting 

period and Scheme year is included in Appendix C. 
 
 
 
 Page 189



This report is PUBLIC  
 

5.0  Customer Services 
 

5.1 An overview of our front-line customer contact activity is shown in Appendix D. This outlines 
the variety and volume of support provided by the Fund to address members’ pension 
queries. An indication of the statistics for the previous year is included within the charts as a 
comparative measure. 
  

5.2      The most popular queries to our contact centre remain as follows: 
 

• Customers following up on an existing Fund process 
• Requests for Pensions Portal support 
• Enquires about accessing pension benefits 
• Request for support with a Fund letter/form 
• Members updating their personal details 

 
5.3 Contact volumes have been higher than usual over the October-November period when  

increased member communications were issued, however a slight decrease in calls was 
noted in December. We have continued to work closely with Member Services to stagger 
mailings sent to members, with annual benefit statements being sent within this period. 
Staggering mailings smooths the impact on the contact centre and reduces call 
queues/written response times, allowing us to better serve our customers and reduce the 
number of chaser requests received. 

 
6.0     Complaints 
 
6.1 The Fund has a complaint monitoring framework, which enables regular monitoring and 

review of trends impacting performance. Where a complaint highlights an improvement 
area, this is investigated and monitored to help shape future services and improve overall 
customer satisfaction going forward. This mirrors the process undertaken for general 
customer feedback as outlined within the Customer Engagement Update. 

 
6.2 Complaint numbers were lower than average during the last quarter. Overall the number of 

complaints received by the Fund is proportionally low compared to the number of scheme 
members, with 34 complaints received for the last quarter. Of those complaints, 35% were 
upheld (compared to 49% in the prior quarter) and lessons learned incorporated in training 
and process development. The percentage of upheld complaints have largely remained 
stable over the last two years, allowing for variation relating to specific events outside of the 
control of the Fund.  

7.0   Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) Casework 

7.1  Year to date for 2022/2023, four cases have been referred to Stage One (two partially 
upheld, one not upheld and one under investigation). Nine cases have been referred to 
Stage Two of the procedure on appeal against the Fund, seven of which have not been 
upheld and two currently under investigation. 

8.0 Employer Membership 
 

8.1 During the period, the Fund has seen a slight decrease in employer numbers, with the 
overall number of employers registered with the Fund standing at 800 at 31 December 
2022. However overall, there has been a 91% increase since March 2014 as shown in the 
graph below, however, the 2022/23 year to date increase has been lower than previous Page 190



This report is PUBLIC  
 

years, and it is anticipated that a more moderate increase will be observed over the 
remainder of this year. 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 The employer base is categorised into the following employer types: 

 
 
 
8.3 The level of on-going work being processed at the end of the period is as follows:  
               

• 52 admission agreements  
• 20 academies 
• 88 employer terminations 

 
9.0 Application for Admission Body Status 

 
9.1 Organisations must satisfy one or more of the admission criteria before they can be 

admitted to the Fund following approval of applications.  
 

51
243

508

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Scheduled body (inc. 
district councils, 
parish councils, 

Universities, colleges)

Admitted bodies Academy

418 473 542 612 622 672 704 743 805 796 802 800

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Marc
h 2014

Marc
h 2015

Marc
h 2016

Marc
h 2017

Marc
h 2018

Marc
h 2019

Marc
h 2020

Marc
h 2021

Marc
h 2022

June 2022

30-Se
p-22

31-D
ec-2

2

No. of employers

Page 191



This report is PUBLIC  
 

9.2 There were 8 approvals for admission to the West Midlands Pension Fund granted by the 
Pensions Committee at their meeting in March 2023, these are detailed in Appendix E. 
 

10.0 Pensions in Payment 
 
10.1 The gross annual value of pensions in payment to December 2022 was £582.4m vs 

£559.58m in 31 March 2022, £16.7m of which (£9.7m for pensions increase and £7.0m for 
added year’s compensation) was recovered from employing authorities and other bodies as 
the expenditure was incurred. 

 
10.2 Monthly payroll details were:  
 

Month Number Value (£) 
October 2022   92,551        42,895,661 

November 2022 93,034        43,171,452 

December 2022 104,343        43,826,958 

 
The December figure includes pensioners paid on a quarterly basis. 

 
10.3 Pensions are increased each April, in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI), with uplift 

calculation based on September CPI in the previous year. An increase of 10.1% will be 
applied from April 2023, which was confirmed with the treasury order released in February 
2023.  

 
11.0 Transfer Out – All Casework 
 
11.1 A total of 166 individual transfer payments were made during the period 1 October 2022 to 

31 December 2022, resulting in a total amount transferred of £7,369,975. This is broken 
down into the following categories: 

 
Type of transfer Number of transfer 

payments 
Value of Transfer 
Payments (£000s) 

Non Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

33 £750,907 

Interfund (LGPS Fund) 132 £6,618,269 

Additional Voluntary 
Contributions 

1 £799 

 
11.2 Non LGPS Transfers 
 
11.2.1 During the period 1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022, 277 transfer value quotations 

were issued to members considering transferring their benefits out of the Scheme (in the 
prior year 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021, 357 transfer value quotations were issued 
to members). The Fund continues to monitor any trends and increases in demands, as part 
of its programme of work to protect members from potential pension scams. 

 
11.2.2 In total 33 transfer payments were made during the period 1 October 2022 to 31 December 

2022 (18 of these were to non public sector schemes) resulting in a total amount transferred 
of £750,907 (in the prior year 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 a total of 38 transfer Page 192



This report is PUBLIC  
 

payments were made totalling £1.6 million). The payments by value and value break down 
are as follows: 

 
Number of Transfer Payments Value of 

Transfer 
Payments 

Other Public 
Sector Scheme 

Non Public sector 
scheme 

0 to £30,000 12 14 
£30,001 to 
£100,000 

3 2 

£100,001 to 
£200,000 

0 2 

£200,001 to 
£300,000 

0 0 

£300,001 to 
£400,000 

0 0 

£400,001 to 
£500,000 

0 0 

Above £500,001 0 0 
Total 15 18 

 
11.2.3 The Fund has seen a gradual increase in the number of requests from members for transfer 

out quotes, however the number of members electing to progress with the transfer of their 
benefits out of the Fund remains fairly low and stable (c12% of the quotations requested 
year to date). This is shown in the graph below: 

 
 

 
11.2.4 Analysis has been undertaken of the transfer out payments to non public sector or 

occupational schemes over the period of October to December 2022 to review the volume 
and trends. During the period, of the 33 completed, a total of 18 non public sector or 
occupational scheme transfer out payments have been processed, to a total of nine 
different receiving schemes. There were 14 transfers under £30,000 in value, meaning 
members were able to transfer these payments without a requirement to take financial 
advice. The average age of members transferring out was 49 years with the main reasons 

10.63%

7.89%

11.55%

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

Ap- June 2022 July - Sept 2022 Oct - Dec 2022

Quotes Payments % Paid vs Quoted

Transfer Out - Quotes vs Payments

Page 193



This report is PUBLIC  
 

for members transferring out was either to consolidate their benefits into one provider or 
release cash/flexible draw down (members over 55). 

 
12.0 Financial Implications 

 
12.1 The report contains financial information which should be noted. 
 
12.2 Employees of organisations who become members of the LGPS will contribute the 

percentage of their pensionable pay as specified in the Regulations.  
 

13.0 Legal Implications 
 
13.1 The Fund, on behalf of the City of Wolverhampton Council will enter into a legally binding 

contract with organisations applying to join the LGPS under an admission agreement. 
 
14.0 Equalities Implications 
 
14.1 There are no direct equalities implications.  
 
15.0 All Other Implications 
 
15.1 There are no other potential implications.  

 
16.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
16.1 None. 
 
17.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
17.1 Appendix A: Workflow Summary 
 
17.2 Appendix B: Detailed Process Analysis 
 
17.3 Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
17.4 Appendix D: Customer Service Statistics 
 
17.5 Appendix E: Admitted Body Applications 

Page 194



Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



P
e
n
s
io
n
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l
R
e
p
o
rt

D
e
ta
il
e
d
P
ro
c
e
s
s
A
n
a
ly
s
is

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

B
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
/2
1

2
1
/2
2

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

O
c
to
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Y
T
D

A
c
ti
v
e
&
D
e
fe
rr
e
d
m
e
m
b
e
rs

P
ro
c
e
s
s
ty
p
e

J
o
in
e
rs

a
n
d
R
e
jo
in
e
rs

(B
u
lk
)

8
,7
6
3

6
,4
0
3

1
1
,1
3
8

1
3
,5
5
8

9
,8
1
6

1
6
,6
8
8

2
0
,2
2
7

1
7
7
5
5

2
5
5
0
9

1
9
9
3
9

1
7
4
7
9

1
6
5
3
3

1
7
7
3

1
2
1
1

1
1
6
8

1
7
1
3

1
2
5
8

1
8
8
5

1
8
7
4

3
2
5
7

9
0
7

1
5
0
4
6

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
in

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
e
g
c
h
a
n
g
e
in

h
o
u
rs

1
8
,7
5
9

1
5
,3
0
3

1
2
,3
8
5

1
1
,2
7
3

6
,3
9
1

8
,7
5
2

6
,3
7
0

5
3
8
6

5
7
2
5

6
6
5
8

5
1
6
1

4
5
4
2

2
9
9

3
6
6

4
2
0

4
6
6

4
2
7

4
4
7

2
7
1

3
3
3

2
7
3

3
3
0
2

D
e
fe
rm

e
n
ts

5
,9
3
9

7
,8
1
8

5
,7
4
1

6
,7
2
8

5
,6
6
4

8
,3
4
0

8
,1
7
8

8
6
2
9

1
5
9
3
4

1
1
9
9
4

9
4
4
4

1
0
9
5
0

9
4
6

1
0
4
8

1
1
5
5

1
1
0
4

9
3
2

9
6
7

1
0
1
1

1
5
1
4

7
3
7

9
4
1
4

A
c
ti
v
e
R
e
ti
re
m
e
n
ts

(E
m
p
lo
y
e
r
re
ti
re
m
e
n
ts
)

3
,3
1
7

3
,9
5
0

2
,4
7
5

2
,2
7
9

2
,3
5
1

2
,7
7
5

2
,5
9
3

2
6
7
6

2
2
8
0

2
1
1
2

1
9
0
8

2
1
9
8

2
0
1

2
3
7

1
7
3

2
4
7

2
5
2

2
2
6

1
8
1

2
0
7

1
5
8

1
8
8
2

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
R
e
ti
re
m
e
n
ts

3
,3
3
2

2
,9
7
0

2
,9
7
1

2
,7
2
6

2
,3
0
1

3
,4
2
1

3
,5
5
2

4
4
2
9

4
8
1
4

5
0
7
1

4
8
4
4

5
5
0
7

4
9
3

4
8
6

4
2
1

4
4
9

4
7
9

4
7
4

6
8
0

8
2
1

4
7
0

4
7
7
3

D
e
a
th
s
o
f
m
e
m
b
e
rs

2
9
5

2
6
2

2
8
7

2
8
5

2
3
0

3
7
9

3
9
9

4
7
0

4
2
9

4
4
1

5
7
0

4
5
2

3
0

5
2

3
1

3
8

4
2

3
4

2
1

3
7

2
2

3
0
7

R
e
fu
n
d

6
8
7
7

4
4
9
9

5
0
3
6

4
4
9

4
1
2

5
8
2

6
1
7

5
1
3

5
3
9

5
8
1

6
3
0

2
6
4

4
5
8
7

O
p
t
O
u
ts

3
5
8
5

1
2
2
8

1
2
2
8

5
7

8
7

5
5

7
8

6
7

3
2

7
9

3
8

3
5

5
2
8

A
m
a
lg
a
m
a
ti
o
n
s

1
1
6
2
8

8
8
4
1

8
0
9
8

6
3
7

9
0
5

1
1
8
9

1
9
6
0

9
1
4

9
6
0

1
1
7
0

1
7
9
2

8
4
1

1
0
3
6
8

P
e
n
s
io
n
e
r
m
e
m
b
e
rs

P
ro
c
e
s
s
ty
p
e

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
in

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
:-

D
a
ta

e
g

P
a
s
s
w
o
rd
s
,
N
I
N
u
m
b
e
rs

1
,3
1
0

1
,8
0
4

1
,8
6
5

2
,0
1
7

2
,6
0
4

4
,5
4
8

2
,4
2
7

3
1
0
5

2
6
9
4

1
9
5
3

1
7
6
1

2
4
5
7

1
7
5

1
8
8

1
7
5

1
3
9

1
8
3

1
7
2

1
2
7

2
2
1

6
8
4

2
0
6
4

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
o
f
A
d
d
re
s
s

2
,4
2
0

2
,6
8
1

2
,1
3
1

1
,7
3
2

1
,7
3
3

2
,2
3
7

2
,5
8
9

3
0
0
4

2
6
2
8

2
4
2
3

2
4
4
8

2
8
8
6

2
8
7

4
4
2

2
2
7

2
5
0

2
0
9

2
1
1

1
8
9

1
8
2

1
2
4

2
1
2
1

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
o
f
B
a
n
k

2
,9
2
7

2
,5
3
1

2
,7
8
3

3
,4
2
0

3
,2
8
1

1
,5
7
3

2
,2
7
2

2
2
1
4

1
9
5
7

1
8
7
4

1
5
3
9

2
0
5
7

1
5
3

1
9
6

1
3
0

1
6
3

1
6
5

1
8
0

1
6
1

2
3
3

1
6
1

1
5
4
2

D
e
a
th
s
o
f
p
e
n
s
io
n
e
rs

2
,0
8
5

2
,1
4
5

2
,1
0
1

2
,5
4
6

2
,4
5
4

1
,7
0
2

2
,8
1
3

2
9
1
9

2
7
9
3

2
6
5
0

3
8
8
6

3
2
2
6

2
7
2

3
1
5

3
0
3

3
1
9

2
3
9

2
4
1

3
1
3

3
1
5

1
8
6

2
5
0
3

P
a
y
ro
ll

A
c
tu
a
l
n
u
m
b
e
r
p
a
id

7
9
2
,7
2
4

8
3
7
,1
8
9

8
7
0
,8
0
4

8
9
5
,0
1
8

9
1
3
,8
6
4

8
8
8
,9
5
4

9
1
5
,2
7
5

9
4
5
,1
9
6

9
7
9
,8
1
9

1
,0
1
9
,2
9
5

1
,0
9
3
,9
4
9

1
,1
0
5
,4
2
3

9
0
,9
5
2

9
1
,2
2
3

1
0
2
,2
0
7

9
1
,7
6
4

9
2
,0
4
5

1
0
3
,2
4
9

9
2
,5
5
1

9
3
,0
3
4

1
0
4
,3
4
3

8
6
1
,3
6
8

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

C

K
P
I

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



 

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

7
7
4
1

7
0
2
1

8
4
8
3

8
2
3
1

7
5
6
0

6
4
3
2

6
2
1
7

6
6
4
7

7
3
3
8

7
4
6
5

6
6
1
9

3
5
4
0

5
6
0
9

5
6
0
9

5
6
0
9

4
9
6
8

6
1
7
1

5
4
1
9

5
1
6
6

5
7
4
3

6
4
1
4

6
2
3
6

5
6
3
5

3
2
9
4

7
0
9
4

7
2
9
3

8
0
2
7

8
1
4
2

6
2
9
9

7
1
1
4

6
6
4
3

6
0
6
3

7
9
6
8

6
3
5
5

6
0
0
9

4
1
0
2

7
2
.4
6
%

7
9
.8
9
%

6
6
.1
2
%

6
0
.3
6
%

8
1
.6
3
%

8
4
.2
5
%

8
3
.0
9
%

8
6
.4
0
%

8
7
.4
1
%

8
3
.5
4
%

8
5
.1
3
%

9
3
.0
5
%

9
.1
2
%

-3
.7
3
%

5
.6
8
%

1
.0
9
%

2
0
.0
2
%

-9
.5
9
%

-6
.4
1
%

9
.6
3
%

-7
.9
1
%

1
7
.4
7
%

1
0
.1
5
%

-1
3
.7
0
%

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

D
:
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

O
c
to
b
e
r-
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
2
0
2
2

C
a
lls

O
ff
e
re
d
2
0
2
2

C
a
lls

A
n
s
w
e
re
d
2
0
2
2

C
a
lls

O
ff
e
re
d
2
0
2
1

A
n
s
w
e
r
R
a
te
(T
a
rg
e
t
8
5
%
)

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
in
c
re
a
s
e

Page 201



 

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

2
5
9
7

2
7
3
1

2
7
5
4

2
7
6
1

2
7
4
1

2
6
6
5

2
4
6
0

1
8
6
0

1
8
0
7

1
6
6
2

3
1
2
2

1
9
6
7

2
9
5
3

2
9
2
1

2
4
0
6

3
0
4
3

2
5
0
2

2
2
9
9

2
9
8
0

2
4
3
7

2
3
9
8

1
7
0
1

-1
2
.0
6
%

-1
5
.1
1
%

-2
2
.2
3
%

-5
.4
8
%

1
3
.9
2
%

-1
2
.4
2
%

-1
.6
8
%

-1
9
.1
0
%

-3
9
.3
6
%

-3
1
.8
0
%

3
0
.1
9
%

1
5
.6
4
%

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
in
c
re
a
s
e

Q
u
e
ri
e
s
R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
2
0
2
1

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

D
:
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

Q
u
e
ri
e
s
R
e
c
e
iv
e
d
2
0
2
2

Page 202



J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

5
0

9
4

1
3
8

1
4
4

9
7

1
4
0

1
5
3

9
0

1
3
6

2
6
8

2
5
2

2
8
7

2
9
4

3
1
5

2
4
3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

D
:
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

V
is
it
o
rs

in
2
0
2
2

V
is
it
o
rs

in
2
0
1
9

Page 203



 

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

4
3
1

3
4
4

4
0
8

4
5
1

6
4
0

4
6
3

6
0
3

5
0
7

5
1
1

3
4
5

4
0
0

2
8
9

5
0
2

4
2
9

5
4
3

5
7
5

6
6
1

4
9
0

5
0
1

5
5
2

6
2
0

5
5
4

4
3
9

3
0
3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

D
:
C
u
s
to
m
e
r
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

C
h
a
n
g
e
o
f
A
d
d
re
s
s
2
0
2
2

C
h
a
n
g
e
o
f
A
d
d
re
s
s
2
0
2
1

Page 204



Appendix E

Employer name Guarantee Status

(Agreement)

No. of employees

(Scheme members)

Agreement type

Status

(Approved/pending

approval)

Pendergate Ltd (Small

Heath Leadership

Academy)

STAR Academies 9

(8)

Closed

Approved 

Alliance in Partnership

Ltd (Emmaus Catholic

MAC)

Emmaus Catholic

MAC

5

(5)

Closed

Approved 

Atalian Servest Food Co

Ltd (Fairfax MAT)

Fairfax MAT 15

(14)

Closed

Approved 
 

RB Active Care Ltd

(Maidensbridge Primary

School)

Dudley MBC 1

(1)

Open

Approved 

Taylor Shaw (The

Meadows Primary

School)

Birmingham CC 3

(3)

Closed

Approved 

Innovate Services Limited

(The King's C of E School)

Wolverhampton

CC

6

(5)

Closed

Approved 

Livewell Leisure Ltd

(Sandwell MBC)

Sandwell MBC 238

(238)

Open

Approved 

Pendergate Ltd (Fairfax

Mulit-academy trust)

Fairfax MAT 10

(10)

Closed

Approved 

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
 
 
 
   

 

Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report Title  Customer Engagement  
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Simon Taylor 
Email 
 

Assistant Director (Pensions) 
Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email 

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

  
Recommendation for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The engagement activity and informed service development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 207

Agenda Item No: 12

mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 
 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide the Board with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1 

October 2022 to 31 December 2022 and to cover future planned customer engagement 
activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 One of the Fund’s key objectives is to engage to improve outcomes for our customers. In 

line with this objective, the Fund has published, and keeps under review, a Customer 
Engagement Strategy, to review satisfaction and help inform improvements to its pension 
services. 

 
3.0      Member Engagement & Communication  

 
3.1 The Member Services team continues to deliver member support via hybrid channels 

including member webinars, face to face presentation and followed up with individual 
consultations as required. During this reporting period 1,222 members attended our 
presentations, webinars and workshops. These were followed by 462 individual member 
consultations. Our events are delivered at various times throughout the day to 
accommodate attendance around member and work commitments. This delivery and the 
associated feedback is summarised in Appendix A. 

 
3.2 During this reporting period the Member Services team targeted Children’s and Adult 

services along with Parish Councils and Libraries and Local Education Authority (LEA) 
schools, and provided 25 satellite support events to 284 hard to reach members. These 
are members who may not normally be able to access our services due to the nature of 
their work and location, which might include access to web-based delivery (i.e., computer 
facilities), working hours or ‘satellite’ locations.  

 
3.3 Through the “Be Pension Smart & Take Control of your benefits” campaign the Fund           

continues to encourage members to view and manage their pension record online using 
the pensions portal. During this reporting period registrations increased by 3,323 (this is 
702 members more than the previous reporting period) bringing the total pension portal 
registrations to 127,620 at the end of December 2022. 

 
3.4 The Fund continues to promote aspects of our work via the social media platform 

LinkedIn. Since the last reporting period a further 7,662 people have interacted with our 
variety of articles from sharing award success, recruitment and highlighting success. This 
level of interaction is broadly the same as the last reporting period.  

 
3.5 The West Midland Pension Fund roadshow bus delivered its first events back at District 

locations across the region since the pandemic. These events were planned to coincide 
with members receiving their annual statement. The bus was stationed at 7 locations and 
saw 654 people during the weeks it was on tour. Feedback from these events was 91% 
rated excellent and 9% rated very good. 

 

Page 208

https://portal2.wmpfonline.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/west-midlands-pension-fund


This report is PUBLIC 
 
3.6  “Planning your retirement” workshops are still proving to be popular with members who 

are over the age of 55. In this quarter the Member Service team delivered 13 workshops 
to active members which helped 260 attendees with their retirement planning.   

 
3.7 The Fund continues to target active and deferred members who do not hold a valid 

nomination form through our bespoke campaign, over this period we emailed 1,027 
deferred members and 3,265 active members to encourage them to complete a 
nomination form. 

 
3.8 Penson Saving Statements were sent to members on the 5 October 2022 who had 

exceeded the annual allowance limit. The Member Services team followed these 
statements up with offering high earners the chance to book on 7 Pension Tax Webinars 
which received a record high of 131 higher earners registered. 

 
3.9 The Fund’s first face to face Pensioner Engagement Forum since the pandemic took 

place on the 7 October. This forum was designed for pensioner members to provide their 
feedback and ideas to enhance a member’s retirement journey for the future. A guest 
speaker was present from the Alzheimer’s Society to talk about the support and 
information available. The group reviewed the feedback from the “Tea & Teach” sessions 
delivered over the course of the summer 2022, reviewed the newsletter and pensioner 
member communications and also provided input to inform development of the Fund’s 
new website and new pensions portal, both of which are ongoing and to be delivered 
middle of 2023. The feedback and actions from this event will be published in the “You 
Said, We Did” part of the 2023 pensioner newsletter. The feedback from the event was 
overwhelmingly positive. 

 
3.10 Each Autumn the Fund provides Deferred and Active members with a newsletter which 

covers a variety of updates across the Fund, important member information and covers 
topical issues in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). In October 59,499 
Deferred Pension Smart newsletters were sent out via email followed by 71,716 Active 
Pension Smart newsletters which were emailed out in November.  

 
3.11 The Fund offers bespoke member support to all participating employers; we were 

approached by one large district council to request support with helping members 
understand the impact that mandatory leave could have on benefits and also to show 
members how they buy back any lost periods. The Fund created a bespoke support 
package which included the delivery of 6 webinars, 6 face to face support events and an 
electronic leaflet.  

 
3.12  Website content continues to be updated and there have been 378,000 web page views 

in this quarter. 
 
3.13 Customer feedback is key to understanding our customer’s journey, highlighting our 

strengths and any gaps in the service we deliver so that we can continually improve the 
services we offer. Following a review of our ‘Post Event’ surveys to scheme members 
and the creation of a customer feedback dashboard, post-event surveys are now being 
issued to members regularly. The overall customer feedback Key Performance Indicator 
(KPI) for this quarter is 92%. 

Page 209



This report is PUBLIC 
 
4.0  Employer Engagement 
 
4.1 Employer Peer Group 

 
4.1.1 The third session of the Fund’s Employer Peer Group cycle for 2022/23 took place in 

December with 16 out of the 18 registered employer representatives present. The 
content for the meeting included: 

 
• Transition of pensions administration software – general update on the current status 

of the project and planned training 
• Final Statement 2022/23 – discussion and feedback about this year’s request for a 

Final Statement of payments from all employers 
• New Fund website – discussion and development of content and design 

 
4.1.2 Once again this session was held virtually to accommodate employer attendance 

alongside their own existing priorities. 
 
4.2 Employer Webinars 
 
4.2.1  The Employer Services team has continued to deliver a programme of employer 

education over the quarter with 11 sessions delivered to 103 attendees from 31 
organisations (a mix of both employers and payroll providers). Combined, these 
individuals represent over 220 employers within the Fund. This quarter’s programme 
included 2 face to face coaching sessions at i9 with more to follow in 2023. The sessions 
are free to attend and provide a useful refresher for existing staff or as an introduction to 
processes for those who are new to Fund administration. 
 

4.2.2 Sessions delivered over the quarter are set out below and will continue to be rolled out 
over the course of the following year. An increased suite of webinars is now available 
each month and employers are able to easily sign up via the Fund’s website:  

 
• An introduction to the LGPS 
• Understanding Pay and Service in the LGPS 
• Assumed Pensionable Pay 
• West Midlands Pension Fund (WMPF) Retirements and Notification 
• WMPF Death in Service and Notification 
• All About Ill-health Retirement 
• Submission of your Monthly Data File 
• The Pensions Administration Strategy: Your Role and Responsibilities  
• Calculating Assumed Pensionable Pay 

 
4.2.3  A full suite of webinars specific to the roll out of the new pensions administration software 

and Employer Self Service functionality will become available in the coming months.   
 

4.3      Employer Engagement and Performance  
 

4.3.1 Utilising the virtual working arrangements currently in place, the Employer Services team 
have continued to hold performance meetings with various employers throughout the 

Page 210



This report is PUBLIC 
 

period. Employer performance is assessed in line with the Fund’s Pension Administration 
Strategy (PAS). 
 

4.3.2 During the period the Fund held 19 feedback and performance meetings with 12 
organisations and 2 third-party payroll providers (note some employers were met with on 
multiple occasions during the period). Collectively these employers and payroll service 
providers are responsible for submitting for 234 organisations, representing c53% of the 
active membership. 
 

4.3.3 The Employer Services team is currently also undertaking a considerable amount of 
engagement to target a reduction in the number of member records flagged as being a 
possible leaver (but an employer/payroll provider has not submitted the relevant 
notification to the Fund). The team is also working closely with the Benefit Operations 
team to increase the employer response rate and timeliness with respect to data queries 
sent to employers via the work tray functionality. The engagement has commenced with 
bulk communications and will be further supported by individual targeted engagement 
and support. The continued employer engagement in collaboration with colleagues from 
the Fund’s finance, data and operation teams helps to ensure member data records are 
continuously reviewed and cleansed for accuracy.    

 
4.4    McCloud: Employer Support 

 
4.4.1 The Employer Services team continues to offer targeted 1:1 meetings to help employers 

meet the McCloud data collation and submission requirements. During the period, 36 
meetings were held, reaching across 83 employers who had to date not submitted the 
required data. Over the same period an additional 191 files were fully completed (each 
employer is required to submit 2 files, one to confirm hour changes and one to confirm 
service breaks). This represents a collection rate of c36% when based upon both files 
and across all employers in scope, and c74% based upon active employers only. 
 

4.4.2 In addition, email and telephone support continued to be offered to employers ahead of 
the November 2022 deadline for submission of the initial files. Whilst this deadline has 
since passed, the team are continuing to work with employers where resultant queries 
arise. 

 
5.0 Planned Engagement Outside of the Reporting Period 
 
5.1 Across March and April the Fund will issue P60s and newsletters to our pensioners. This 

year the pensioner newsletter contains useful information such as pension pay day 
dates, pensions increase, explaining members’ P60s and sign posting to support to help 
our pensioners with the cost-of-living crisis. Please see Appendix B. 

 
5.2 The Member Services team is now preparing to deliver 10 roadshows at Depot locations 

across the West Midlands region. Details of all events delivered will be included in the 
July customer engagement update.   

 
5.3 During this reporting period the Fund’s member video suite, providing on-demand 

support and guidance to members, has been expanded to include new videos such as 

Page 211



This report is PUBLIC 
 

helping our pensioner members understand Pensions Increase for 2023 and also         
re-vamping our Pensions Portal registration video. 

 
5.4 The Fund’s “Tea & Teach” sessions are currently being planned for the months of May to 

June delivering 8 events with the objective to bring pensioners together face to face and 
join us for refreshments, giving them the chance to sit down with a Fund officer to talk 
about any pension concerns they may have. We are hoping to partner up with local 
organisations to provide as much support and literature as possible for our pensioners. 
Feedback will be provided in the next customer engagement update.  

 
5.5 Noting the importance of cleansing data, in February 2023 the Fund started to write out 

to 2,806 active members, 4,223 deferred members and 2,461 pensioners whom we 
believe may have changed their email address. We will be asking them to update it on 
the Pensions Portal.  

 
5.6 Following dialogue with employers at our Annual General Meeting (AGM) to support the 

initiative, the Fund is currently working across our employer network to seek insight and 
feedback from a younger generation of members on the best methods to engage them 
on their pension benefits. We are also canvassing opinion amongst younger Fund staff 
with a similar objective.  

 
5.7 Aligned to the recent Budget announcements and specifically the increase in the Annual 

Allowance and abolition of the Lifetime Allowance, we will be reviewing our engagement 
in relation to pensions tax, including pensions savings statements, to be proactive ahead 
of this year’s exercise.  

 
6.0  Fund and Sector-Wide Events 
 
6.1 The Fund’s 2022 AGM was held on the 6th of December 2022 with good attendance, 

positive feedback and covering a range of topics across financial management, industry 
change and developing services to members. The event stimulated healthy engagement 
with our employers and the opportunity for sharing ideas. A summary of feedback is 
outlined in Appendix C. 
 

6.2 In February the Member and Employer Services teams were invited to attend Sandwell 
Inspired Partnership (SIPS) Bursar event to provide valuable updates from both an 
employer and member perspective. Feedback from the day was positive and we received 
several requests from individual schools to provide member presentations and individual 
pension consultations.  

 
6.3 On the 23 March 2023, the Fund attended the Birmingham Association of School Business 

Management group (BASBM), delivering a presentation covering member engagement and 
supporting employers. 

 
6.4 HR 360, which is the Coventry Bursars group has asked for a member presentation at 

their schools and academies business meeting on the 30 June 2023. 
 

7.0 Financial Implications 

Page 212



This report is PUBLIC 
 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications 
 
8.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
 
9.0 Equalities Implications 
 
9.1 The report contains no direct equalities implications. 
 
10.0 Environmental Implications 
 
10.1 The report contains no direct environmental implications. 
 
11.0 Human Resources Implications 
 
11.1 This report contains no direct human resources implications. 
 
12.0 Corporate Landlord Implications 
 
12.1    The report contains no direct corporate landlord implications. 
 
13.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
13.1 There are no background papers within this report. 
 
14.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
14.1  Appendix A - Review of feedback from member presentations and individual pension 

consultations. 
 
14.2 Appendix B - Pensioner newsletter: Pensioner Newsletter (3dissue.net) 
 
14.3  Appendix C – AGM feedback. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcloud.3dissue.net%2F17509%2F17563%2F17682%2F88257%2Findex.html%3F62578&data=05%7C01%7CSimon.Taylor2%40wolverhampton.gov.uk%7Ca707d121098c40feb1e908db1b1bd3e4%7C07ebc6c370744387a625b9d918ba4a97%7C0%7C0%7C638133578546804142%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0MBivmV%2BSK8tUo0iTCRTLVVV%2FjYevFAOoCPA7PVe0SQ%3D&reserved=0


This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 T

e
a

m
 P

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k

 –
 1

s
t  O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
- 

3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

  

P
e

n
s
io

n
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

 

 

E
v
e

n
t 

R
a

ti
n

g
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

P
re

se
n

te
r 

R
a

ti
n

g
 

Page 215



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

a
ti

n
g

  

M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 T

e
a

m
 P

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k

 –
 1

s
t  O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
2

2
- 

3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
2

  

 

E
v
e

n
t 

R
a

ti
n

g
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
re

se
n

te
r 

R
a

ti
n

g
  

 

In
te

ra
ct

io
n

 R
a

ti
n

g
  

Page 216



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 





































































Appendix B

Page 217























 

 

 

 

















 

 

 





























  




Appendix B

Page 218



































































 





































 

Appendix B

Page 219










































 




















































Appendix B

Page 220


























































 



























Appendix B

Page 221






















 


 


 


 




 









 
























 















 














Appendix B

Page 222






























































             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             



Appendix B

Page 223












 

















































































Appendix B

Page 224



Appendix C

Page 225



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

C

H
o
w

w
o
u
ld

yo
u
ra

te
th

e
e
m
p
lo
ye

rs
’
A
G
M
?

G
o
o
d

3
7
%

E
xc

e
ll
e
n
t

6
3
%

P
o
o
r

S
a
ti

sf
a
ct

o
ry

G
o
o
d

E
xc

e
ll
e
n
t

Page 226



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

C

P
le
a
s
e
ra

te
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
a
s
p
e
c
ts

o
f
th

e
e
v
e
n
t:

Page 227



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

C

P
le
a
s
e
ra

te
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
a
s
p
e
c
ts

o
f
th

e
e
v
e
n
t:

Page 228



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

C

H
o
w

w
o
u
ld

yo
u
ra

te
th

e
to
p
ic
s
b
e
lo
w

in
re

g
a
rd

to
c
la
ri
ty
,
s
ty
le

a
n
d
d
e
li
v
e
ry
?

Page 229



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

C

Page 230



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

C

H
o
w

w
o
u
ld

yo
u
ra

te
th

e
to
p
ic
s
b
e
lo
w

in
re

g
a
rd

to
c
la
ri
ty
,
s
ty
le

a
n
d
d
e
li
v
e
ry
?

Page 231



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 

 
1. The update on investment governance matters including those in relation to responsible 

investment and investment pooling. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
Pensions Board 
25 April 2023 

  
Report title Investment Governance 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable 
employee 

Shiventa Sivanesan  
 
Email 

Assistant Director, Investment Management & 
Stewardship   
Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has 
been considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood  
Email 

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 

Page 233

Agenda Item No: 13

mailto:Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on investment related matters and an update on responsible 

investment activities, together with the ongoing development of Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool.   
 

1.2 The Fund has a longstanding policy of supporting good corporate governance in the 
companies in which it invests. The Fund will also challenge companies who do not meet 
either the standards set by their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best 
practice. The Fund’s approach is part of its overall investment management arrangements 
and its active Responsible Investment Framework. There are three main pillars to the 
framework: selection (of assets), stewardship (of assets), and transparency & 
disclosure. The Fund’s Responsible Investment Framework incorporates four targeted 
engagement themes including Climate Change, for which the Fund has developed a policy 
framework and risk management strategy. 
 

1.3 LGPS Central Ltd (“the Company”) is a jointly owned investment management company 
established by West Midlands Pension Fund and seven Partner Funds to deliver 
investment pooling for the LGPS Central pool in accordance with the criteria laid down by 
the Secretary of State. The pool plays a role in enabling and supporting the implementation 
of the Partner Fund Investment Strategy. 
 

1.4 Investment products and services to Partner Funds are developed, supported and overseen 
by the governance structures established within the Company and across the wider 
investment pool. The Shareholder Forum and Joint Committee each meet at least twice 
annually with the Shareholder Forum considering shareholder related matters such as the 
Company’s strategic business plan, annual budget and annual report and accounts. The 
Joint Committee is focused on the client deliverables of investment pooling, together with 
governance and oversight of pooling arrangements.  

 
2.0 Responsible Investment  
 
2.1  The Fund continues to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders 

through partnerships and on its own. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder 
value by engaging on a range of financially material economic, social and governance 
(ESG) investment factors. A significant part of the Fund’s engagement programme is 
implemented through partnerships including the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 
(LAPFF), EOS at Federated Hermes (‘EOS’ - via a contract held by LGPS Central Ltd, the 
Fund’s investment pool operator), the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change 
(IIGCC), Climate Action 100+ (CA 100+), the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI), and the 
Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI). 

 
2.2 The Fund’s engagement activity is monitored and reported to the Pensions Committee on a 

quarterly basis. Engagement activity includes a number of direct company engagements, 
on a range of themes, voting activity and working in partnership with other institutional 
investors to consider shareholder resolutions. Activity and progress are included in 
published reports from LGPS Central Limited, LAPFF and EOS at Federated Hermes. 

 
2.3  At their meeting in March 2023, the Pensions Committee received a copy of the Fund’s 

draft voting principles which have been reviewed and updated ahead of the 2023 voting 
season. The voting principles have been revised noting the important role voting places in Page 234



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

the overall engagement strategy and in consultation with LGPS Central Ltd. Key updates to 
the document include, strengthening of expectation on board composition to further 
enhance diversity and increased expectations around disclosure including climate-related 
disclosure, gender pay, deforestation-related risks, human rights and modern slavery-
related risks, and tax transparency. A draft version of the Fund’s updated Voting Principles 
is available within the background papers to this report. The final version will be presented 
to the Pensions Committee for approval in June 2023.  

 
3.0 LGPS Central Investment Pool Governance 

 
3.1 The Fund continues to work closely with its investment pool company LGPS Central Ltd 

and Partner Funds to look for opportunities to transition assets where it can see value add 
from doing so including the opportunity to make cost savings.  

  
3.2  The Shareholder Forum (Shareholder representatives of each of the Partner Funds) meets 

ahead of Company meetings (General and AGM) held twice per year. The Shareholder 
Forum last met on 28 February (ahead of the Company’s General Meeting) and approved a 
refresh of its terms of reference, were introduced to the Company’s two new incoming Non-
executive Directors and received a briefing form the Practitioners Advisory Forum (PAF) on 
the items due to be presented for approval at the Company’s General meeting held on the 
same day. 

 
3.3  At the General Meeting, Shareholders received the following items: 
 

• Chair’s Report on Company progress and Board evaluation 
• Prior year activities and performance review 
• Business Plan for 2023/24 and associated Company budget 

 
3.4 Shareholder resolutions were presented at the meeting on the following matters: 
  

• Approval of the Strategic Plan (which includes a proposed budget) and Regulatory 
Capital Statement for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 (requiring unanimous 
approval)  

• Approval of the individual remuneration packages for the Chair and Non-Executive 
Directors (requiring majority approval)  

• Approval of the individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors 
(requiring majority approval)  

 
3.5 The next meeting of the Joint Committee is due to take place in July 2023. Board members 

will continue to receive invites to pool-wide events including stakeholder days and the 
Responsible Investment summit, as these are arranged during the year. 

 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1  There are no direct financial implications arising as a result of this report.   
 
5.0  Legal Implications 

 

Page 235



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

5.1 The requirement to pool Fund investments is a requirement of law, failure to work 
collaboratively and meet the Government’s criteria for delivery may result in Government 
intervention.  

 
6.0  Equalities Implications 
 
6.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
7.0 All Other Implications 
 
7.1 There are no other implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
8.0  Schedule of Background Papers 
  
8.1 WMPF Draft Voting Principles: 15. App A Final.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
9.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
9.1 None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 236

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s235863/Appendix%20A%20WMPF%20Draft%20Voting%20Principles%202022.pdf


Document is Restricted

Page 237

Agenda Item No: 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 243

Agenda Item No: 16



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 251



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Funding Strategy Statement
	5 Funding Strategy Statement
	Appendix A - Funding Strategy Statement

	5 Funding Strategy Statement
	Appendix B - Asset Share Policy

	6 Investment Strategy Statement
	6 Investment Strategy Statement
	Appendix A – Investment Strategy Statement 2023

	7 Corporate Plan
	7 Corporate Plan
	Appendix A - Corporate Plan 2023 – 2028

	8 External Audit Plan
	8 External Audit Plan
	Appendix A - External Audit Progress and Indicative Risks Report

	8 External Audit Plan
	Appendix B - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment for West Midlands Pension Fund

	9 Internal Audit Plan
	9 Internal Audit Plan
	Appendix A - West Midlands Pension Fund Internal Audit Plan 2023 – 2024

	10 Compliance and Assurance
	10 Compliance and Assurance
	Appendix A - Risk Register

	10 Compliance and Assurance
	Appendix B - Key Performance Indicators

	11 Pensions Administration
	11 Pensions Administration
	Appendix A - Workflow Summary

	11 Pensions Administration
	Appendix B - Detailed Process Analysis

	11 Pensions Administration
	Appendix C - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

	11 Pensions Administration
	Appendix D - Customer Service Statistics

	11 Pensions Administration
	Appendix E - Admitted Body Applications

	12 Customer Engagement
	12 Customer Engagement
	Appendix A - Review of feedback from member presentations and individual pension consultations

	12 Customer Engagement
	Appendix B - Pensioner newsletter: Pensioner Newsletter (3dissue.net)

	12 Customer Engagement
	Appendix C – AGM feedback

	13 Investment Governance
	15 Development of Fund Resource
	16 Cyber Security
	16 Cyber Security
	Appendix A - WMPF Cyber Security Strategy


